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Responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Pursuant 1o the applicable Accounting Act of the Republic of Croatia, the Management Board 15 responsible for
enguring that financial statements are prepared for each financial year in accordance with Internaticnal Financial
Reporting Standards (The IFRSs") as published by the International Accownting Standards Board ("1ASB"), which
give a frue and fair view of the financial position and results of cperations of the Company Zagrebalki holding
d.o.0. and its subsidiaries ("Group®) for that period

After making enquines, the Management Board has a reasonable expectalion thal the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operafional existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Management Board
continues to adopt the going concem basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing those consolidated financial statements, the responsibiliies of the Managemenl Board include
ensuring that:

v suitable accounting policies are selected and then applied consistently;
¥ judgments and eslimates are reasonable and prudent;

» applicable accounting standards are followed, subject o any material depariures disclosed and explained in
the consofidated financial statements. and

¢ (he consolidated financial statements are prepared on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to
prasume that the Groug will continue in business.

The Managemeni Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy al any time, the financial position of the Group and their compliance with the Croatian Accounting Act.
The Management Board is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group, and hence, for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

These consobdated financial statements were authonsed for issue by the Managemeni Board on 28 June 2013,
Signed on behalf of the Management Board.
Iva Gra
| . ) | %‘
VWV

W
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Owner of Zagrebalki holding d.o.o.:

We have audited the accompanying consclidated financial statements of the company Zagrebacki Holding
d.o.0, and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2012 and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's responsibility for the finamcial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Audiror's responsibifity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on consolidated financial statements based on our audit, Except as
provided below in Paragraph 1), Basis for qualified opinion, we conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the unconsolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstastement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements of an entity in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivencess of the entity's intermal conmtrol. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)
Basis for qualified opinion
1) Bus leases

During 2008 and 2009 the Group entered into lease agreements for 214 buses over a period of 96 months (3
years), with the total value of the agreements amounting to HRK 978,885 thousand. Those leases are
recognised in the Group's books as operating leases. As per the agreements, the monthly lease payment
includes additional charges such as registration, servicing, insurance and other costs related to the operability
of the buses over the term of the lease. Since we could not satisfy ourselves as o the amount of such
additional costs included in the lease payment and were not able to make full distinction between the
principal, interest and other cost amounts included in the monthly lease payments charged by the lessors, we
were not able to determine whether the lease agreements are financial or operating leases as specified in
International Accounting Standard 17 "Leases™ (IAS 17). As a resuli, we could not determine whether any
of the amounts require restatement.

2) Classificarion of leases

As disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group, as the lessor, entered into
several lease agreements during 2009 and 2008, which have been accounted for as operating leases.
However, the classification of these agreements at inception is not compliant with International Accounting
Standard 17 “Leases”™ (IAS 17), according to which a lease where the present value of minimum future
payments under the lease agreement approximates the fair value of the leased asset is classified as a financial
lease, which is the nature of the leases entered into by the Group. Had the Group accounted for its lease
agreements properly as financial leases, as of 31 December 2012, the receivables under financial lease, less
future income earned, would have been be higher by HRK 646,454 thousand, property, plant and equipment
would have been be lower by HRK 888,037 thousand, retained eamings would have been lower by HRK
211,301 thousand, and the result for the year then ended would have been lower by HRK 30,282 thousand.

Chealified opirnion

In cur opinion, except for the potential effects of the marters discussed in Paragraph 1) and the effects of the
matters presented in Paragraph 2) of the Basis of qualified opinion paragraph, the consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group at 31 December 2012,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards.



Independent Auditor's Report (continued)
Emphasis of matter
Without further qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following:

) Title to praperiy

As discussed in Note |8, certain local municipal land registers have not been fully updated. The registration
of the Parent and its subsidiaries title to land and buildings in appropriate registers, serving as evidence of
ownership, is in progress. Although the Parent and its subsidiaries possess certain documents serving as
evidence of title, there is uncertainty as to the final status of those assets.

d.sios La

U

Branislay Vrtalnik, Certified Auditor and Member of the Board
28 June 2013



Consolidated staterment of comprehensive income
Fed the year ended 31 December 2012

012 2011
MHobes Asg resiated
{in HREO00) (in HRK )
OPERATING INCOME
Sales 5 4,284 455 4,019,081
Cihar operaling ncome & 1,267 482 1,206,178
Total 5,552 477 5,315,239
DOPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of maternal and senvices 7 (2,629 064) {2.509_154)
Staff cosls (1.863 E15) {1,642 95E8)
Depreciation and amorisation f {821, 722) (601 260)
Other expenses 10 {35, BET) (31,0407
Impairment allowance on current and
non-curmani assets 1 {44, 070) (275,101)
Provisions for risks and charges 12 (105, 246) (58.419)
Dither operaling expenses 13 (450, 616) {0, B96E)
Tatal {5.551,420) [5,378.8238)
FINANCIAL INCOME 14 66,256 111,670
FINANCIAL EXPENSES 15 (403,309) (508,334)
TOTAL INCOME 5,618,733 5,426,909
TOTAL EXPENSES 5,954,729 5.BBB, 162
LOSS BEFORE TAK (335,996) (461,253)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 16 i8,818) (5,061}
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (d44 614) (467 314)
Attributable to: {344,814} (467 314)
Altributable 1o tha equity halders of tha Camgany {246, 656) (4638 851)
Mon-conirolling merests 1.BE2 1637
Other comprehansive(loss) [ incomae
Gains on revaluation of properly, ned of Lix ) {127} &84 086
Total comprehensive (loss) [ income far the year [344,941) 136,772
Total comprehensive (loss) | income attributable to: (3d4,941) 126,772
Adtributable to thw equily holders of the Company (346,823) 225,135
Hon-condrolling interesis 1,882 1,637

The accompanying accouniing polices and notes form an infegral part of these consolidated financial statements

Zagrebatki Holding d o 0. and its subsidiares Zagreb



Consolidated statement of financial position

At 31 December 2012

HON-CURREMNT ASSETS
Intangible assels

Properiy, plant and equipment
Investment property

her financial assets
Mom-curment recelvables
Deferred {ax assels

Tatal non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Invanioras
Currerd recefables

Amounts owed by relaled partes

Trade receivables

Amounts due from employees
Receiables lrom the State and

ather institutans
Other receivables
Tofal curren! asseis

Other financial assels

Cash and cash equivalants
Total current assats

TOTAL ASSETS

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Motes Hnaizo2 A1 01012011
e As restated As restated
{in HRK'000) (in HRE'Q00) {in HRK'00Q)
17 54 448 21,822 20 422
18 15,033,194 15,345,468 14,773,457
18 2,764, 386 2,823,683 2.947 460
20 122 522 127,827 120,807
21 1.744 683 1,896,740 2,017,752
16 B5ITY 66.772 64,561
19,784,402 20,276,113 19,939,459
22 788,484 540,020 83770
23 413615 505,374 996,793
24 1,087,781 1,020,274 1,086,254
25 3,206 2,304 2,081
26 23.763 18,186 17,758
27 romg 125,824 137,570
1. 694, 254 1.671.962 1,840 456
20 40,279 56,813 23,343
28 80,730 143,003 125,455
2818797 2,712,698 2,826,066
22,403,199 22,988,811 22,766,414
41 380,374 1,007,819 1,235,872

The accompanying accounting polides and notes form an integral par of these consclidated financial stalements.

Zagrebacki Holding d .o o, and ils subsidiaries, Zagreb



Consolidated statement of financial position {continued)

Af 3 December 2012

EQUITY

Share capital

Ravalualion resere

Other reserves

{Accumulated losses) f retained earnings
Mon-controlling inferests

Tatal aquity

HON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provishons

Loans payable

Liabilties under imsued long-lerm
SRcUnlies

Other mon-current liabilities
Defemred income

Defermed tax liabdity

Total non-current labllities

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Armounts owed o related parties

Loans and bormowings
Liabilities in respect of loans. deposits
and similar

Trade payables
Amounts due to employees

Taxes and coninbubions payable
Ohes current liabilities
Total current Habilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Notes 22012 22011 o1o1rE011
A restated A realated

{in HRK000) {in HIRK000) {in HRK000)

29 o 208 B20 4 208 824 4 208 629
2 851,458 2,861,563 2,167 4597

&7.300 &7.300 15,125

{54,247) 202 4489 761,400

2,850 1,068 {568)

7,116,088 7,481,029 7,162,082

30 422 204 304 522 437 51T
3 2 B43.237 3171605 3,457,060
a2 2 263 887 2259126 2,215,552
33 257,128 127.659 224 819
34 5203442 5487 487 5,794 042
16 693,361 653,493 520 113
11,773,154 12,233,792 12,648,903

35 141,341 B0, 300 58 T5T
31 1,510,938 1,270,316 845 301
36 28,6653 26,134 24 352
ar 1,060, 304 1,082,158 1,082 323
33 23, 130 ar.orr 83,856
kL 126 880 137,037 105 458
40 552 691 G20.967 a4, 381
3,513,957 3,293,990 2,965,429

22,403,198 22,888,811 22,766,414

41 BEO,3TY 1,007 81% 1,235 872

The accompanying accounting policies and noles form an infegral part of these consolidated financial statemenis

Zagrehadii Holding d o a, and its subsidianes. Zagreh
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
.'.'-E'f this year ended 31 December 2012

AN e o e —

Loss for the year

Tax expense recognised in the income statement
Finance cost recogmsed in profit or loss
Investment income recognised in profit or loss
Impairment sflowance on curmenl assels

Change in the fair value of imvestment property
Impasrmvent allowance on non-curent assels
Drspraciation and amortisaton

Gains | (losses) from sake of assets

Imcrease | (decresse) in long-term provissons
Decrease in defemred income on assets financed by others
Forelgn exchange losses

Changes in working capital:

Decrease in inventonies

Decrease of prepayments for non-current assets
Increase in rade recenables

Decreass in receivables from related companies
Increase in amounds due from employees

Increase in recervables from the State

{Increase) [ decrease in olher recelvables

Increase n financal assels

Increase in Eabilities 1o suppers and related parties
Increase in advances received

(Decrease) ! increase in faxes and confnbulions payable
[Decrease) | increase in amounts due to employees
Dcrease in othed non-current labiities

(Decraase) | ncrease in ather cument liabilties

Net cash generated from operations

Zagrebalii Holding d 0.0, and its subsidianes, Zagreb

2012 2011
Ag restaled
{in HRE000) {in HRK'000)
(344, 814) (467,314}
B.a1a 6,081
383,008 365 807
{41.8TE) {36.846)
178,174 152,765
G0 247 118,777
5,580 3,558
621,722 G0 260
9,502 {3,216)
2777 (42 S05)
(194.045) (224,380
4 653 81,208
28475 18,772
4,287 13,748
{246,691} (88,785)
91,758 21419
(802} {223)
15.577) (428)
(32.387) 14,958
(695) (1,020)
58185 ara
2,529 1,782
{8.553) 28,4889
{3.847) 1221
(74 282) {88.715)
(BB, 276) 16,585
464,034 556,957
g



Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

o rme —

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

Interest paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of tangitke and intangible assets
Procesds from sale of tangible assets

Increase in non-currant receivablas

Decrease [ {increase] in currant financial asseis
Interast paid

Met cash used in invesling activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of loans and borowings
Received loans and borrowings

Met cash (used injgenerated from financing activities

Met (decrease) | Increase in cash

Cash at 1 January
Cash at 31 December

2012 2011
As restated
{in HRK'000) {in HRK'000)
464,034 558,957
(7.812) (5. 407)
(279 379} (264, 348)
176,843 287,201
(345,825) (348 204)
6,204 5913
151,714 113,287
16,534 (33,470}
20,170 33,634
{142,203) (226,840)
(2,088,926) (1,102,009)
2,001,113 1,080,096
(87,813) {41,913}
(63,173) 18,448
143,903 125,455
90,730 143,903

The accompanying accounbing policias and notés form an integral part of these consolidated financial stataments,

Zagrebatki Holding d o0, and its subsidianes Zagreb

10



MNotes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2012

1 GENERAL INFORMATION
History and Incorporation

On 27 December 2005, Tha City of Zagreb and the Company concluded several share transfer agreements
imvofving 22 companies on the basis of which the ownership interests in these companies were transfermed in full
frovm e City of Zagreb to the Company. The transfermed equity inerests in the nominal amount of HRK 4,006,550
thousand represent assels thal ane at the free disposal of the Company. In addilion, pursuant o these
agreements, the City of Zagreb increased the subscnbed capital of the Company, by converling the recaivables
under the Share Transfer Agreament by a total of HRK 4,036,590 thousand in egquity

In 2006 and 2007, seweral companies, which are enumerated below, were mergad info the Compamy, and tha
Company underwent several changes in ils status, all of which were registered at the Commercial Courd in Zagreb.

Upan the merger, the merged entities transferred all of their assets and liabilties to Zagrebadki Hobding as the
acquirer. Pursuant to the underlying merger agreements and the applicable provisions of the Companies Adl, the
share capital of Zagrebadki Hodding was not increased by the share capital of each of the merged entibes because
it held the entire share capital in each of the entities.

Activities

Al 31 December 2012 Zagrebalki Holding doo., Zagreb [“the Company™) comprised the following business
unitsranches

Mame al the branch Heaadquarars Form Principal activily Cramprship I'I'I;'lﬂ
of
B organisalicn 1z 2011
Zagrebaiki holding Averia Vukovar 41 firnited Pubilic franspar, waber supply,  100% City  100% City

liability cleaning, wasie colleclion and  of Zagreb  of Zagreb
COmpany dispasal; evel sgancy

business, apods, tacikty and
real mslabe managernenl
100% 25 100% 25
I GESKG Sawska cesta 1 Bbranch Facility management halding holding
100% Zg.  100% Zg.
i (Gradskas groblja hroga) 10 branch Funeral and relaled senvices heldireg halding
Wiater calieclion, treatment 100% Zg.  100% 2g.
3 Nodoopskha | odvodnja Folnagovicava | branch and supply hipiging hoiding
Pubbc area cleaning, waste 100% Zg 100% 2g.
& Cisioda Radniia Eeanch coleclnn and spasal npdciang hcdding
Zagrebatki eleidnitni 100% 23, 100% Zg
5 framwvaj Czalska 106 branch Puble: passenger iranapan hodding niakding
Lanoscaping and plant 100% fa 100%: g
4  Znrpevac Remetmedcks B2 branch Growing nakding halkding

Zagrebalki Holding d.o.o. and its subsidiatias, Zagrab i



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group {continued)
_Fn-r the year ended 31 December 2012

e —

GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Activities {continued)
Marmm of the branch Headquarters Fanm Prncipal acihviy Cremetship inenest
ol
crganisati
on 2012 2011
100% Zg 100% 2g
7 Zlagrebparking  Subiéeva 40 branch Public parking kots and garages hplding
Zagrebacke Diarge Svelics Regional and local road managemisnt 100% Zg. 100% Zg
8 ceste 44 branch marienance and canabnaclion Fiolding holding
Autobusni
kglodvor Awgnija 100% Zg 100% 2g
9 Fageh M. Drdica 4 branch  Bus station hoiding heiding
Tririice Whalesale and retail markels, warehousing 100% Xg. 100% Zg.
10 Zagreh Subiieva 49 branch  and starage helding holding
100% Zg 100% Zg.
11 Z2G05 Zedani brg 3 branch Wasie colleclion and removal hakding haokding
Lagrebaii Slavonska 100% Ig. 100% Zg
12 dagitaind grad avenia bb nranch Lease of IT cable and network sysléems alding halding
100% Ig 100 Zg
13 Sienogradnia  Bukovatka 4 brarch Flat construction and sale Fezldireg hpkding
Sports faciliey Sporls tacilty management and 1007% Zg 100% Zg
14 managemerd  Trg K Cosica 11 branch mainbenance holrg hilding
banavideva 100% 2o, 100% Zg
15 AGM i branch Pubdishirg hickdng noiding
Robir
tarminall 100% Zg. 100% &g,
18 Zagreb Jankomir 25 branch Warphousing heiding halding
Wiadimir T00% Zg. 100% g
17 Hazoe Mlaksimer 52 biranch Trawal agercy business takding hakling
Zagrebadic 100% Zg. 100% Zg.
18 velesajam Ay Dubeoamik 15 branch Cirgansation of fars, congresses, seminars hakding Pealding

Zagrebatki Holding d 0.0, and its subsidiaries, Zagreb
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
Far the yaar ended 371 Decamber 2012

1 GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Activities [continued)

Companies and instititions owned by ZagrebaZki holding d.o.o. that form the Zagrebaéki holding Group:

Headquart
Hama of company ars Fizemri Prirscipal activity Cramsarship inberest
o
. _brgdnisation 2012 011
Gradska plinara Zagreb lirniled liabslily 100% 7g. 100 74
1 doo Radnidka 1 camrgany Gas distributian halding heading
Gradska plinara Zagret - lriled liabdlily 1007% Zg. 100% Zg,
2 Opskrba dan Radnitka 1 campary Gas supply haakding heikding
Savska lirnited liakality 51% Zg 1% Zg
1 Zagreb plakal d.o.o. cesta 1 company Lease of adveriising spacs hakding hodding
Krafja 100% Zg. 1005 2g.
4 Gradska hekarma Zagreb Dirfislava & nistiluan Dinagshane halding hokding
Saveka Fniled liability  Spors Baciity management and 100%Zg  100% Zg
5 ZFagreb adena d.o.e cesky 1 company ceganisafion of spafing svants halding hodding
A Dhubroy 100% 29
& Zagreb cenirum dd. nik 15 dd Reat aslate aclivias - hakding
Zagrebacho investiciske  AwDubrov  lenited labéity 100% Zg
7 drukbed dog. ek 15 campany Imvestmant fund managemant 2 hakding

" In Novembssr 2011 the merger of Zagreb centrum dd and Zagrebagko invesbcisko drugtvo d.o.o, inio
Zagrebatki holding d 0.0 was entered in the registry of the Commercial Count in Zagreb based on the Decision of
the Assembly of 13 September 2011 and the underlying merger agreements. The mergers were effected by
transferring all the assels of those companses, together with all the rights and obligations attaching to them,
withiouf increasing the share capétal.

Principal activities
During the year, the principal aclivities of the Group comprised the provision of the following sendces,

Cleaning and waste removal senices

Public passenger transport services

Water collection, treatment and supply

Landscaping and plant growsng

Managemeant, mainlenance, construction and protection of regional and local mads
Cleaning and waste removal senvices

Gas supply and destribution

Drugstora

Warehousing and rental senvices

Flal, busingss premises and garage constnection and sale
Other serices

TEe ™ & a0 Fe

==

Zagrebadki Holding d 0.0 and ds subsidianes, Zagreb 13




MNotes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 Deceamber 2012

1 GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Staff

Al 31 December 2012, the Group had 12 575 employees (31 December 2011; 12,731 employees), as presented
bl

Group Mo of staff Mo. of staff
a2 3NM22011

Zagrabadxi holding d.o.o. 11,620 11,778
Subsidianas B55 B52
12,576 12,73

Directors and manageament

Thie members of the Managemen! Board of Zagrebadki holding o 0.0, were as Tollows:

2Mm2 2011
1 ivo Ciowic, President until 30 June 2013 1 lvo Cowie, Prasident

2 Brarmimar Delié, Member until 12 October 2012 2 Branimir Debké, Member

3 Viasta Pavic, Memberundil 30 June 2013 3 Viasta Pavic, Member

4 Alenka Ko&ga Citin-Sain, Member until 30 June 2013 4 Alenka Kosiga Citin-Sain, Membar
g t;l;r.:\!niﬂm Cula, Member since 12 October 2012until 30 June

Zagrebatki Holding d o.0. and s subsidiaries, Zagrab 14



MNotes to the consaolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 Decermber 2012

1.  GENERAL INFORMATION [CONTINUED)

Directors and managemaent (continued)

Subsidiaries: Director as at 31 December 2012
1. Gredska plinara Zagreb d.o.o. Bruno Lackowd

2. Gradska plinara Zagreb Opskrba doao. Igor Pinja

3. Zagreb plakal d.oo Bornis Gisna, Lovorko Mamid

4. Zagreb arena d.c.o Tomislay Pervan

5 Gradska ligkarma Zagreb Mila Bucalid

Zagrebatki Holding d.o.0 and ils subsidianes, Zagreb
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the yaear ended 31 December 2012

1. GEMERAL INFORMATION [CONTINUED)
Directors and management (continwed)

The members of the Supervisory Board of Zagrebadki Holding during 2012 were as follows

1. Ivo Drudic, President (until 28 February 2012)

2. Josip Kregar Vice President (untll 28 February 2012)

3. Andelka Buneta, &lanica (until 28 February 2012)

4. Dragan Kovadevic, Member (wntil 1 May 2012

5. Mato Crvenac, President (since 28 Februany 2012 until 30 June 2013)

6. Maruska Virek, Vice President (since 28 February 2012 until 30 June 2013)
7. Hrvoe Simavic, Member (since 28 February 2012 until 30 June 2013)

&. Mina Tepes, Member (since 28 Febnuary 2012 until 30 June 2013)

The members of the Supervisory Board of Zagrebadki Holding during 2011 were as follows:

1, Iva Drugit, President {until 28 February 2012)
2. Josip Kregar, Vice President (uniil 28 February 2012)
3. Andelka Buneta, Member (untl 28 Febouary 2012)

4. Dragan Kovatevic, Member (until 1 May 2012)

5. Mato Crkwenac, President {until 28 February 2012)

6. Marugka Vizek, Vice President (until 28 February 2012)
7. Hrvoje Simovié, Member (until 28 February 2012)

Zagreback Holding d.o.0. and its subsidiaries Zagreb
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group {continued)

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2012

1. GENERAL INFORMATION [CONTINUED)

Directors and management (continued)

The members of the Assembly of Zagrebatki Holding during 2012 were as follows:

1 Digvor Bemardié (until 27/0802012)
2 Dragan Korolija-Mannié (until 27/08/2012)
3 Zvane Brumnit (until 270852012)
4 Dragan Vudic (until 27/08/2012)

5 Jurica Meid {until 27082012}

B Tatjana Holjevac (until 27/092012)
7 Wesna Brazid {until 270852012}

8 Danira Bilié (until 27/08/2012)

9 Velimir Srica (until 24/052012)

10 Jozo Radod (uniil 24/05/2012)

11 Darinko Kosor (until 27/092012)

12 Menad Matic (24/05-27003012)

13 Dragan Kovatevit (24/05-27/0802012)

14 Mihaela Grubigic Seba (since 27/08/2012)
15 Burdica Jurié {since 27/08/2012)

16 Viktor Gotovad (since 2T/082012)

Zagreb Mayor issued on 18 June 2013 the conclusion according io which the Company |5 represented by the
Mayor of Zagreb in ihe General Assembly. Previous conclusion was changed on 28th June 2013 in a way thal City
of Zagreb si represanted in the General Assembly by three represeniatives:

1, Milan Bandit, Joini Representative

2. Sandra Svaljek, Representative

3. Slavko Kaojic, Representativa

The members of the Assembly during 2011 were as follows:

1 Diavor Bemardic

2 Boris Sprem (until 19 December 2011)
3 Zvana Brumnit

4 Mirando Mrsit (until 19 December 2011)
5 Jurica Meld

& Tatjana Holpevac

T Jasen Mesic (until 220022011}

B Velimir Srita (unlil 24/05°2012)

8 Radimir Cadid (until 12/07/2011)

10 Jozo Radod (untd 25/052012)

11 Darinko Kosar

Zagrebatki Holding d 0.0, and s subsidiaries, Zagreh

12 Vesna Brazid

13 Dragan Korolga-Marinid (since 19 December 2011)
14 Dragan Vudic (sinca 18 December 2011)

15 Danira Bili¢ {simce 22/0272011)

16 Danira Bilié (since 24/052012)

17 Dragan Kovadawic (since 25/05/2012)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

1. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERMATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The following amendments o the existing standards issued by the Infemational Accounting Standards Board and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporing Interprefations Committee are effective for the
currant period:

»  Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of IFRS - Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-ime Adoplers [effeciive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011},

= Amendments to IFRS T Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of Financlal Assets (effective
for annuwal periods beginning on o after 1 July 2011},

=« Amendments to [AS 12 lncome Taxes - Deferred Tax: Recowery of Underdying Assels (effective faor
annual pericds baganning on or afer 1 January 2012)

The adoption of the amended and revised Standards and Interpretation has not lead to changes in the Group's
accounting policies.

Standards amd Inferpredations i ssue not yel adopded

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements the following Standards, revisions and Interpretations
ware in ssue bl not yet effective:

= IFRS 9 Financial instruments, as amended in 2010, (effective for annual periods beginmng on or after 1
January 2015)

+ IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, published in May 2011 and amended in 2012 supersedes
the previous wersion of 1AS 27 (2008} "Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”, (effective for
annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

= IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, published i May 2011 and amended in 2012, superseded [AS 31
“Inferests in Joint Ventures” (effective for annual penods beginning on or alter 1 January 2013)

« |FRS 12 Disclosure of Interesis in Other Entities, published in May 2011 and amended in 2012
[effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

# IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, published in May 2011 (effective for annual penods beginming on or
after 1 January 2013),

= |AS 2T Separate Financial Statements (as amended in 2011} - Consolidation requiremeants previousty
forming part of LAS 2T (2008) have been revised and are now confained in IFRS 10 "Consolidated
Financial Statements”, (effective date of IAS 27 (as amended in 2011) for annual pericds beginning on of
after 1 January 2013}

« 1AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventwres jas amended In 2011}, This wersion
supersedes [AS 28 (2003) Investments in Associates (effective date of WAS 28 (as amendead in 2011) for
annual pandds begenning on of aller 1 January 2013)
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

2 ADOPTION OF MWEW AMND REVISED INTERMATIOMAL FIMAMNCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
{CONTINUED)

Standards and Inferpretations in issue nal yet adopted {continued)

«  Amendmenis o IFRS 1 First —time Adoption of IFRS. published in March 2012, amendmands for
government loan with a below market rate of interest when transitioning to IFRS (effective for annual
penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013},

« Amendments o IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, published in December 20711,
amendments enhancing disclosures abouwt offsetting of fimancial assets and financial liabiites (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013} and amendmenls requiring disclosures abouwt the
initial application of IFRS 9 (eMective for annual perods beginhing on or after 1 January 2015),

s Amendments to IAS 1Presentation of Financial Statements - Revising the way of presenting the ather
compretengive income (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012),

»  Amendments to 1A5 19 Employes Bemefits - Improvements 1o the Accounbng for Post-Employment
Benefits (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013},

=  Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instrumenis: Presentation and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures. published in December 2011, amendments to application guidance on the offsetling of
financial assels and financial instruments (affective for annual perods beginmng on or after 1 January
2014),

« |FRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine ({effective for annual pericds
beginning on or after 1 January 2013).

«  Amendments to various Standards and Interpretations from Annual improvements 2009 - 2011
Cycle, published in May 2012, a collection of amendments 1o IFRSs, in response to issues addressed
during the 2009 =2011 cycle. Five standards {IFRS 1, IAS 1, 1AS 16, |AS 32, IAS 34) are primarily
gffected by the amendments, with conseguential amendments to numerous olhers (effective for annwal
periods beginning an or after 1 January 2013)

« Transition guidance, published in June 2012, amendment to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, {effective
for annual periods beginning an or after 1 January 2013).

»  Amendments to investment entitkes for IFRS 10, IFRS 12, 1AS 27 published in Oclober 2012 (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014)

The Group has elected naot 1o adopl these Standards, revisions and Interpoetations in advance of their effective
dates and
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group {continued)
Far the year ended 31 December 2012

2 ADOPTION OF MWEW AMND REVISED INTERMATIOMAL FIMNANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Standards and inferpretations in isswe nol yet adopled (continued)

anficipates thal ihe adopton of IFRS 8 Fmanca! instromeris will have a malenal impact on the measurement and
disclosure of financial statements and the adoption of IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Oiher Entities and IFRS 13
Fair Value Meazuremen| will result in more detailed disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

The Manzgement Board anticipates that the adoplion of IFRS 10 Consoiidaled Francral Statemens, IFRS 11
Joir! Arrangarnerts will nol have 3 matenal impact on the financal statements of the Group in the pericd of their
adoptan

it alzo anticipates that the adoption of the above-menticned amendments to 1AS 32 and IFRS T will rasull in
enhanced disclosures about the offsstting of financial assels and financial liabdites in the fulure, In addition, the
Management Board considers that IFRIC 20 will have no impact on the consclidated financial statements of the
Group because the Group is not engaged in the activities of this natura.
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 Decsmber 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

aj Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial staterments are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporing
Standards

b}  Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The congolidated financial statements of the Group incorporate the financial statements of Zagrebadki holding
d.o.o., as the Parent, and its subsidiaries

The consolidaied financial statements of the Group have been prepared under the hestorical cost basis, except for
certain non-current assets, which are stated at revalued amounts, 85 disclosed in Motes 18 and 19 to the financial
statemeants.

The preparation of the consolidated financial siatements in sccordance with IFRSs requires from management o
make estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assels

and liabilites, and revenues and expenses. The areas imvolving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumplions and astimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosad in

Mote 3x.
c) Reporting currency

The consalidated financial statements of the Group are prepared in Croatian kunas, All amounts disclosed in thesa
fmancial statements are presenied in thousands of kunas unless stated otherwise. At 31 December 2012, the
official exchange rate of the Croatian kuna against 1 euro and 1 US dollar was HRE 7 545624 and HRK 5. 726704,
respectively (31 December 2011: HRK 7.53042 for 1 US dollar and HRK 581994 for 1 ewro)

dj  Intangible assets

Compular soffwane

Saftware licences are capitalised based on the cost of purchase and bringing software into a working condition for
its imtended use. The cost is amortised over the usef ife of an assel,

mtermally generaled infangitle assels — reseanch amd development expendiure

Expenditure on rasearch aclivilies is recognised &5 an expensa @ he penod m which it s incumed An infemalhy-
generated inlangible assel ansing from development (or from the development phase of an intemal propect) is
recognised if, and only i, 2l of the following have been demonstrated:

= ihe fechnical feasibildy of completng the infangible assel 50 that it will be available for use o sake,
« the intention 1o complete the infangible aseet and use or sall 4

= he ability to use or sa8ll the inangibie asset,

= the intention to complele the intangible assal and wse or sall d

= how the intangibde asset will generate probable future economic benefits,

Zagrebadki Holding d.o 0. and is subsidiaries, Zagreb 21



Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
E}r Ehe_ymr ended 31 December 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

e)  Intangible assets (continued)
infemally generated infangible assels — resaarch and development expendifing (conbinued)

» the availability of adeguate technical, financial and other resources 1o complete the development and to
ume or sell the intangible assal; and
#  the ability 1o measure reliably the expendifure attributable to the infangible assat duning its development

The amount initially recognisad for an internally-generated intangible assed is the sum of the expenditure incurmed
fram the date when the intangible asset first meets the recogniion criteria Bsted above, Where no intemnally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the perniod
ir which il is incurned,

Subsequent 1o initial recognition, intermally-generated intangible assels are reported al cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as inangible assets that are acquired

separately
f) Property, plant and eguipment

Buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
fhe statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair valee at the date of rdvaluation, less
any subsequent accurmulated depreciation and subsequently accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carmysng amounis o not differ materially from those that would be
determined using fair valuas at the end of sach reporing penod

Any increase ansing on the revaluation of such land and buildings is recognised in other comprehensive Income,
axcept to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same assel previously recognised in profil or
loss, in which case the increase is credited (o profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A
decrease in the carmying amound arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings 15 recognised in profit or loss
to the extent thal it excesds the balance, if any, held in the properties revaluation reserve relating to 8 previous
revaluation al thal asset.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
Far the year ended 31 December 2012

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

&}  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Prenertios in the course of construction for producton, supply or adminisirative purposes or purposes not yet
definéd are camed at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assats, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy, Depreciation of
these assets, which is prowvided on the same basis as for other properties, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use

Freehald land is not depreciated,

installations and equipment are recognised initially al cost, less accumulaled deprecabon and accumulated
impairment eses.

Depreciation |s provided so as 10 write down the cost or revalued amount of an asset over the estimated useful life
of the asset using the straight-ine method. The estimated useful life and amortisabon method are reviewed at the
end of each annual reporting period, wilth the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a

progpective basis.

Azsels held under finance leases are deprecigted over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assels or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease

Any gain or lose ariging on the disposal or retirement of an tem of proparty, plant and equipment s determined as
the difference batwean the sabes proceeds and the carmying amount of the assel and recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method at the rates ranging from 1.25% to
25 % annually, over the following wuseful lives:

2012 2011
Buildings 20-80 years 20-80 years
Wahicles 4-20 years 4-20 yaars
Plant and eguipment 410 years 4-10 years
Office equipment 4-5 years 4-5 years

Residual value is calculabed on prices prévaaling at the dale of acquisibion or revalushon
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For tha year ended 21 Decamizer 2012

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
#)  Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Assels under comstruction comprise cosis directly related to construction of tangible fixed assels plus an
appropriate allecation of wariable and fived owerheads that are incumed during construction. Assets undes
construction are depreciated once they are ready for use. Costs incurred in replacing major porions of the Group's
faciliies, which increase their productive capacity or substantially extend their useful life, are capitalised
Maintenance, replacement or parial replacement costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

irmpairment of tangible and intangible assels

Al each reporiing dale the Group reviews the carrying amounts of ils tangible and intangble assets fo determine
whether there is an indication thal the assels may be impaired. if any such indication exisis, Ihe recoverable
armound of the asset s estimated o determing the potential impairment loss. Where it is nof possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the assat balongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs 1o sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounied Io thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rale that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset,

If the recoverable amount of an asset {(or a cash-generated unit) is estimated to be less that its camying amount
the carrving amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced io its recoverable amount. An impairment [05%
is recognised immediately as an axpense, unless the relevant assel is land or & buikding other than an investment
property camied at a revalued amound, in which case the impairment koss is frealed as a revalualion decrease,

Where an imparment l0ss subseguently reverses, the carnying amournd of the asset {or cash-generating unit) i
increased to the revised estimate of ds recoverable amount, but 2o that the increased camying amount does nod
exceed the carmying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
assel (or cagh-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is credited immediately to incoms,
urdess the relevant asset is camed at a revalued amounl. in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
1) Investment properties

Invesiment property represents property (land) held by the Group for increasing its markei value. Investment
property 18 measured initally at cost. Subseguent o initial recogniicn, invesiment propenies are measunsd at fair
value. Gains and kosses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or loss
for the pericd in which they anse

Imvestment properties are derecognised on sake or parmanent withdrawal from use, as wall as when no fulure
aconomic benefits from their disposal are expectad. Any gain or koss ansing from derecognition of an item of
investment properly, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carmying amount of
the assel, is recognised in profit or loss when the item |5 denscognised.

Dwrireg 2012 invesiment properties were remeasured at fair value on the basis of appraisals by a cerified property
appraisal expert, upon which the gaing and losses resulting from the change in the fair values were included in the
Staternent of Comprahensive Income for the year 2012

gl Hon-current financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets inio the following categories: financial assels “al fair value through profit or
less' (FWTPL). toans and receivables’, "hebd-to-materity investimeants and ‘financial assats available for sale’.

Effactive inferasl meathod

Thie effectve interest method 15 @ method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and ol allocating
interast mocome over the melevant panod. The affectse nteresl rale is the rate thal eactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts {including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral parl of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounis) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriale, a shoner penod

Income is recogresed on an efective interest basis for debl insbruments other than financal assets designaled as
at FVTEL,
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year endad 31 Dacamber 2012

3

F el b

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Hon-current financial assets [continued)

Financial assels are classified as at FVTPL when a financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated as &t

FVTPL.,

& financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired prncipally for the purpose of selling in the near fudure; ar
i iz a parl of an identified porfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

is @ derivative not designated or effective as a hedging instrument.

A financaal liability other than a financial llability held for trading may be designated as al FVWTPL upon initial
recognition if

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or
the financial liability forms part of & group of finencial assets or financial lisbilities or both, which is
managed and its parformance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or
it forms part of & conbrect containing one or more embedded dervatives, and IAS 38 Financial
Insfrumeants: Recogmilion and Measimsnnl parmils ha enlife comidined contract (assel or labilly) o be
designated as al FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated a1 fair value, with arty gaens or loSses ansng on remeasurement recogmised
i profit o loss, The nel gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial
lability and is included in the ‘other gains and losses” line ikem in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
Fln_r_lhu year anded 31 !:lmamr 2012
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
g)  Mon-current financial assets (continued)
Held-to-maturity (HTM) investments

Bills of exchange and debenbures with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities dates that the Group
has the positrve intend and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-matunty imeestments. Hald-to-maturity
investmants are recorded at amonised cost using the effactive intersst mathod lass any impairment, wilh revenue
recognised on an efective yield basis,

Einancial assets avallable for sale

Linlisted shares and lsted redeemable nofes hedd by the Group that are trade in an active market are classified as
available for sale and stated at fair value, The Group also has investments in unlisted sharas hat are ol raded n
an active market bul are classified as financial assets available for sale and camed at fair value because the
management considers that their fair value can be determined reliably. Gains and losses ansing from changes in
the fasr valus are recognised in other comprehensive intome and accumulaled n equely wilhin investrment
revaluation reserve, except for mpaiment losses, inlerest determined using the effective inferest rate amd
exchange differances on monetany assels which are recograsaed in profit or loss. Whare the invesimant |5 disposed
of or ig determined to be Impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the invesiments
revaluation reserve is incheded in profit or loss for the period.

Dividunds on AFS equily insiruments are recognised in profil o loss when the Company's right 1o receive he dividends
5 estabhshed.

Loans and recewables

Trade, loan and ohes récenablas with hixed of delermmable paymenls hat are not quoted o &n active markel ang
ciassified as loans and receivables and measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Interest income s recognised by applying the effective interest rate, excepl for shorl-lerm
receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial

The fair value of AFS monetary assets demominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foraign curmency
and translated al the spol rale al the reporting date. Exchange differences ansen on trangiation and recognised in
profil or loss are deterrmined on the basis of the amorised cost of the monetary asset. Other exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
Fer the year ended 31 December _E_I:HE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

gl Mon-current financial assets [continued)
impalmment of fnancial assels

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss reporied in the statement of comprehensive
income, are assessed for indications of impairment al each reporting date, Financial assels are impaired where
there is cbjective evidence thal, as a result of one or more events thal occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial assed the eshimated flure cash flows of tha investmant have beaen impacied

For unlisted shares classified 33 AFS, & significant or prodonged decling in the fair value of the secunly below ts
cosl 5 considersd 1o be obyective evidence of impairment

For all other financial assets, including redesmable nofes classified as AFS and finance |lease receivables,
objectve evidence of impasrment could include:

« significant financial difficulty of the issuar or counterpady, or
» default or delinguency in interest or principal payments; or
s It becoming probable that the bormower will enter bankrupicy or financial restruciurng.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as irade receivables, assels thal are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective endence of impaiement for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of dalayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit pericd of 60 days, as well as observabla
changes in national or local economic conditions thai comrelate with default on receivables,

For financial assels camed at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment &5 the difference between the assel's
carrying amaunt and the present valee of estimated fulure cash flows, discounted at the financial assat’s ariginal
effective interest rate.

The carmying amaunt of the financial assel s reduced by the impairment loss dreclly for all financal assels wih
the exception of (rade receivablies whare the carrying amount i& reduced through the use of an allowanose attount.
When a trade receivable is considerad uncollecticle, | is written off against the allowance account Subseguent
recovenes of amounts previously written off are crediled against the allowance account, Changes in the carmying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in the slalement of comprehensive moome.,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group {continued)
For the year ended 31 Dacember 2012

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)

gl Non-current financial assels (continued)

With the exception of AF S equity instruments camied at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income,
if, in a subsequent peniod, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
obpectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairmeant oss
is reversed through the statement of comprehensive income to the exieni thal the camying amount of the
investment al the date the impairment is reversed does nol exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised

In respect of AFS equity securifies at fair walue through the statement of comprehensive income, impainment
losses previously recognised in the statement of comprehensive income are not reversed through the statement of
comprenensive ncome. Any Increase in far value subsequend 1o an impairment 10838 & recognised directly m
quity

Derecagnition of financial assels

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights o the cagh flows from the assel expire;
of it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset o another
entity. |f the Group nesther fransfers nor relains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownarship and coninues
fo conmtrol the transfemed asset, the Group recognises its retained inferest in the asset and an associated liakility
for amounis it may have to pay. If the Group retaing substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
fransferred financial assel, e Group conbnues fo recognise the financial assel and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds receved.

h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and with banks. Cash equivalenis comprise demand deposils and term deposils
with maturities of up lo threa monlhs
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2012

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

i Trade receivables and prepayments

Trade debtors and prepayments are shown at amounts invoiced in accordance with the underlying agreement,
order, delivery nole and other documenis serving as the billing basis, net of allowance for uncollectble amounis.

The management provides for bad and doublful recelvables past due beyond one vear, and on the basis of the
owverall ageing struciure of all receivables, as well as by reviewing individual significant amounts retsivabbe,

I} Inventories

Inventories comprise mainly spare parls, malerials, work in progress and finished products and are carried at the
lower of welghted average price, net of alowance for obsolete and excessive inventones, and net realisable value
Managament provides for inventories based on a review of the overall ageing of all invenlones and a specific
review of significant individual items intluded in inventaries. rmeenborias of work in progress and finished produclts
are camied at the lower of production cost and the net seling price

Kk}  Foreign currencies

The financial statements of the Group are presented in the currency of the pimary econamic amironment i which
the Group operates (s funchonal currency). Non-monetary items carried st fair value that are dencminated in
foreign currencies are retranslabed al the rales prevailing on the dale when the fair value was determined. Mon-
monetary lems that are measurad in terms of historical cost in a foresgn currency ane ndl retransiated.

Exchange differences ansing on the setilement of monelary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
included in the statement of compgrehensive income for the period Exchange differences ansing on the
ratranslation of non-manetary items carried at fair value are included in the statement of comprehensive income,
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items availabde for sale in respect of which
gaing and losses are recognised directly in equity, For such non-maonetary items, any exchange component of that
gam of loss is also recognisad dweclly in equity.

)] Retirement and long-service benefits
For defined banefit retirement banefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit Methed, with aciuanal valuations being camed cut &t each reporting date. Acteal gains and losses are

recognised in the period inowhich they anse

Pasl semvice cost is recognised immediately fo the exiend that the benefits are already vested, Otherwise, it is
amorieed on-a siraighl-line basts over certain penod wnbil the benefits become vested
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3 SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)

m)  Retirement and long-service benefits (continued)

The refirement benefit cbligation recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of
he defined benefit obligation as of the reporting dale, adjusted by actuarial gaing and unrecognised pasl service
cost

The Group provides one-off long-service benefits (jubilee awards), solidarity suppor (in case of death of the
armployas, the death of a closs family of workars, disability, purchasing medical supphes, for the birth of the child,
sick leave longer than 80 days, efc.), and retirement banefits 1o its employeas, The obligation and the cost of thesa
benafits are determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The Projected Unit Credit Method considers each
perod of service &s giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlerment and measures each unit separately o
buitd up the finad obligation. The retirement benefit obligation is measured al the present value of estimated future
cash flows using a descount rate that is similar to the interest rate on government bonds where the currency and
terma of the gowvernment bonds are consistent with the currency and estimated terms of the benefit obligation.

iy Income tax
Income fax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax
Cinmenl tax

The tax currently payabls is based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from the net profit reparted in
the staterment of comprehensive income becawse it excludes items of income or ezpense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable or dedwctible, The Group's liabdity for
current tax is calculated using lax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacled by the reporting date

Delarmed lax

Deferred lax is the tax expected o be payable or recoverable on differences between the camying amount of
assels and liablies in the financial slalements and the Cormesponding tax basis used in the computation of laxakbls
profit, and i accounted for using the balance sheet liabdlty method. Deferred tax liabililies are generally
recogrsed for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assels are recognised 1o the extent that it Is
probable thal taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be ubilised
Such assats and Rabilies are nol recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill of from {he nikial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of cther assets and liabilities in a iransaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Dieferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporany differences associated with investments in subsidiaries

and associales, and interesls i joint veniures excepl whene he Group is able to control the reversal of the
tamporary differance and it is probable thal the temparary difference will not reverss in the foreseasble fuiwre
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

) Income tax (continued)

Defermed fax (continued)

The carrying amount of dafermed tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no konger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or a part of the asael to be recovered

Deferred lax assets and Habilities are measured at the tax rates thal are expected to apply in the period in which
the liabdity is settled or the assei realised. based on Bx rates (and fax laws) that havwe been enscled or
subsiantively enacted by the reparting date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
amount that the Company expects, at the end of the reporting peniod, 1o recover or settle the carmying amount of its
asseds and habildies

Deferred tax assets and liabilibes are offset when there is a legally enforcesble rnghd to set off current fax asseis
against current tax labilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities,

Current and defered faxes for the panod

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of comprehensive income, except when i redates o ilems
charged or credited directly o equity, or where it anses from the initial accounting of a business combination, in
which case it Is also recognised in equity

VAT (VAT return)

The Tax Authorfies require that VAT is seffted on & net basis. VAT on sabe and purchase transactions s
recognised in the balance sheel on a nel basis.  If a frade debtor is Impaired, the related impairment loss is
inclhuded in the gross amour of the dedlar, which includes VAT

nj Provisions

Provisions ane recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resull of a past
evernt and it is probable (i.e. more likely than not) that an cutfliow of resources will be required to sefile the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the ocbligation Provisions are reviewed at each
balance shest date and adpusied to reflect the cumrent best estimate. Where the effecl of discounting is material,
the amount of the prowvision is the presend value of the espenditures expected to be required fo ssiile ihe
chligation, determined using the estimated nsk free interest rale as the disoount rake. Where discounting is usad,
the reverzal of such discounting in each year is recognised as a financial expense and the cammying amount of the
proviskon increases in each year to reflect the passage of time
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

n}  Provisions {continued)

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will camy out the restructuning by starting o implement
fhe plan or announcing its main featunes to those affecied by it

The amount recognised as a8 provision s the best estimate of the consideration required to seitle the preseni
obligation at the reporting date, faking inle account the rigks and uncerainiies surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision s measwred using the cash flows estimated o settle the present obligation, its carmying amount is the
present value of those cash flows

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a thied
party, the receivable is recognised as an assed if it is vifually cartain thal resmiursement will be recaived and (e
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably,

o) Borrowlng costs

Borrowing cosis directly altributabée to the acquesiion, construction or production of qualifying asseis, which are
assets ihat necessarnly lake a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added io
the cost of those assels, until such time as the assets are substanbally ready for thesr intended wse or sale
Imvestrment income earmed on the temporary investment of specific bomowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the bosrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Al piher borrowing costs are recognised in nel profil or logs for the penod in which they ane incurmed

Shaort-term borrowings and supplier credits are recognised &t the orginal amownt less balances repaid.  Inferest
expense is charged fo the stalement of comprehensive income for the penod to which the interest relates

pl  Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group
Ciassiication as delil or equiy

Debl and eguity instroments are classified as edher financial habilities or as eguity in accordance with the
substance of ihe confractual amangemeani.
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Pl Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group (continued)
Equily mstrumernls

An equity instrument is any conlract that evidences a residual imterest in the assels of an entity after deducting all
of iz liabdities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Dhfgaiions wnder financial Quaranies Confracts

Financial guarantea contract obligations are measurad initially at ther fair values and are subsequently measurad
&t the higher of:

= fthe amount of the obligation under the contract, as detarmined in accordance with 1AS 37 Provisions,
Confingert LiabWihes amd Contingend Assels, and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amorisation recognised in accordance
with the revenue recognition polices.

Funancial fabdites

Financial liabiities are classified a5 aither financal Kabilities ‘at FYTPL o ‘other financial liabilities’

Financia! Kabifities al fair vaiue throvgh profd or loss (FYTPL)

Financial liabilties are classiied as al FVTPL where the fnancial liabdity ks either held for trading or it is
dasigrated as at FWVTPL.

A fimancial liakélity is classified as held for trading if:

= it has bean acguired principally for the purpose of salling in the near future; or

= i is a pard of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent acleal pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

= ilis a dervative that is not designaled and effective as a hedging instrument.
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIMNG POLICIES (CONTINUED)

pl  Financlal llabliitles and equity Instruments issued by the Group (continued)
Financal iatWifes at @i value Browgh profit or loss (FYTPL) (canbinued)

A fimancial llabdty other than a financial liabdity held for trading may be designated as al FWTPL upon initisl
racognition if:

+ such designalion elimenales or significantly reduces a measurement of recognition inbonsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

+ the financial kability forms part of a group of financial assels or financial labilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis, or

« it forms part of a conbract containing one of more embedded dervatives, and IAS 38 Financial

Imstrumeins; Recognifon and Measuremen permits the entire combsned contract {asset or liability) to be
designated as at FWVTPL.

Financial liabilibes al FWTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised i the slatemant of
comprehensive income. The net gain or loss recognised in the siatement of comprehensve income incorporaies
interest pasd on the financial liabdsty, The fair value is determined as degcnibed in Mote 45 - Financial mstrumeanis.

Orther financrial Nabiites
Othver financial liabilites, including borrowings, are iniially measured ai fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial labilties are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method, with
interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective inferest method is @ method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income and nlerest expense over the relevant penod. The effectve inerest rate i3 the rate thal exactly
discounts astimated fulure cash payments through the expected life of the fnancial kabikty, or, where appropriate.
a shorter period,

Derecognition of francial iabiities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when the Group's cblgations are discharged,
canceled or expined
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
Farihe yaar #5031 Qecembar 2012

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
ql  Operating segment reporting

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group ientified its cperating segments on the basis of internal reports about
eomponents of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate
resources fo the segments and io assess therr performance, Detalls of individual operaling ssgmenis are
discioged in Note 5 1o the financial statements

The Group monitors and presenis specifically the results of its major business segments. The business segments
are the basis wpon which the Group reports s primary segment information. Certain financial information,
analyzed by business and geographical segmends, are presenled in Nole 5

r Contingent liabilities

Conlingent liabilites have nol been recognised in these financial staterments. They are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of rescurces embodying economic bensfits is remote. Mo contingent asssts have been
recognised in these financial statements. They are disclosed in the notes when the inflow of economic bensfis
becomes probabile

%)  Evenis after the reporting period

Events afier the reporiing date that provide additional information about the Group's position al the reporting date
{adjusting events) are reflecied in the financial statements. Post period-end events that are not adjusting events
are disclosed in the notes when material.

th Revenue recognition

Rewenue is recognised when it is probable that economic benefits assotiated with a transaction will flow into the
Group and when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. Sales are recognised net of sales laxes
and discounts. Revenue from rendenng services is recognised by reference to the days worked. Invoices are
issued on the basis of authenticated documentary evidence of the ordering party of aclual services performed by
tive last day in a monih

Fevenus descrglion

= - Waler supply serice income comprises incoma from connections, waler meter installation, as well as
from permanent monthly fees, increased by actual consumplion based on the assessed consumption
level, as adjusted at the end of the reporling pericd to reflect the aclual consumplion based on the
readings;

= - Public ranspart service ravenue comprnsas income from the sale of tickets as per the public transport
price list for the City of Zagreb,

= - Rewvenue from waste removal and cleaning contain income from the provided waste removal and

cleaning sefvices al rates determingd in the applicable price list of the City of Zagreb;
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3

1)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (continued)

- Public road management and maintenance revenue is recognised to the extent of the services and
winiks delivered, in accordance with the underlying contracts with cuslomers;
= Imcome from the sale of fals is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of the ownership are
passed onto the buyer, together with the related costs of selling (constructing) the flats;
- Warehousing and operating lease income is recognised in accordance with 1AS 17 on a straight-ling
Bazis over the relevant ase berm,
i,  Produd and merchandse sales are recognised when the delivery 15 made and accepted by the
customer and when the collectability of the receivables is vifually cerain. Revenue from the sale of
goods is recognised when all the following conditions are satisfed:
ihe Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods:;

- ihe Company retains neither confinuing managerial invodvemeant to the degree usually associabed
with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold,

- e amount of the revenue can be measured reliably,
it is probabile that the aconomic banafits associated with he fransaction will fiow 1o the entity, and
tve costs incumed or to be incurred on those transactions can be measured reliably.

i Sales of senices are recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, by
reference to completion of the specific ransaction assessed on the basis of the actual service

provided as a proporion of the total services to be provided.

The stage of completion of the conbract is determined as Tollows:

fees for the laying of inglallglions are recognised by reference io the stage of completion of installations,
which is determined as a period from the end of the repoding period relative to the total expected panod of
installation compsetion.

Semvicing fees included in the cost of goods sold are recognised by based on the share of the total
servicing cost of a product soid by reference to the number of senaces performed of products sold in paor
perods and

revanue from time and matenal confracts i recognised at the contractual rates as labour hours and direct
BXPENSEs are iIncurmed,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

For the year ehded 31 ﬂmmtler 2{:12_ s

3.

1)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Income from government grants comprises the following:

granis related to assets, including non-monetary grants al fair value, which are presented in the
staterment of financial posifion as deferred income, and are recognised as revenue owver the
peniod necessary to match them with the related costs (depreciation);

grants receivable as compensabon for expenses of losses already incurmed or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the entity with no fufure related costs, which are recognised
as income of the period in which it becomes receivabie.

A governmenl grant is not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Growp will Comply
with the conditions &tiaching to it, and that the grant will be received,

The benefit of a government grant approved at an interes! rate below the market rate is accounted
for as a government grant and disclosed as the difference bebween the funds received and the fair
walue of the loan an the basis of the prevailing market interest rates.

Grants whosa pnmary condition 15 that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
long-term assets are recognised in the statement of financial position as deferred income and
transfermed to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the usaful life of the asset.

Oiheer govesmiment subsidies are mecognised systematically as revenue through the number of
periods necessary to match them with the refated costs. Government grants that are recelvable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incured or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support 1o the Group with no fulwre retated costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
pariod in which they become recevable.

Inderest income is recognised on a time basis so as to caplure the actual yield on an asset

Dwvidend income is recognised when the right 1o receive payment has been established,

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenaver the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
reswards of ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
Far the year ended 31 Decambear 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

uj Leases {continuad)
Tha Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables al the amouni of the Group's net
investmant in the leases. Finance lease income 5 allocated o accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
pericdic rate of returm an the Group's net investment culstanding in respeact of the laases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on the siraight- line basis over the term of the redevant lease
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added o the carmying amount of the
leased asset and recognised on a siraight- ine basis over the lease term.

The Group 25 lesseo

Agsets held under finance lesses are initially recognised as assets of the Group at thedr fair value at the incepdion
of the lease o, if lower, &l the present value of the minimum lease payments. The comesponding liability to the
lessor is included in the stalement of financial posibon as a finance |ease obligation.

Lease payments are apporioned betweean finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation &0 as to achiave a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to profit or
loss, unless they are directly altributable to qualfying assets, in which case they are capllalised in accordance with
tha Group's general podicy on bomowing costs. Contingent rentals are axpensed in the period in which they arse.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on 8 straighl-ine basis over the lease term, except
where ancther systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economéc benefits from the
leased asset are consumed. Contingenl rentals are expensed in the period in which they anse

Incentives received to enter ino operating |leases are recognised as liabilities. The aggregate benefit of incentives
i5 racognised as a meduchion of nental expense on a straight-ing basis, excepl where another sysiemabc basks is
more representalive of the lima pattem n which economic benefits from the leased assel ane consumead.

W) Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters indo a variety of derivalive financial instrumenis fo manage its exposure fo interest rate and

foreign exchange rale nsks, including forelgn exchange forward conlracts, interest rale swaps and currency
SWaps.
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
Far fhe yaar ended 31 December 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

v]  Derlvative financial instruments (continued)
Embeadded dervalives

Derivatives are inilially recognised al fair value at the dale a dervalive contrac is entered into and are
subseguently remeasured al fair value al the end of sach reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effectivie as a hedging nstrument, in which
event the fiming of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nalure of the hedge relationship. The Group
designates cenain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or Babilibes or firm
commitments (fair value hedges), hedges of highly probable forecast transactions or hedges of foreign currency
risk of firm commitments (cash flow hedges), or hedges of net investments in foreign operations

A derrative with a positive fair value i1s recognised as a financial asset whereas a dernvative with a negative fasr
value i1s recognised as a financial Hability, A derivative 5 presented a3 a non-currend asset or a non-current liability
if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and i is not expecied io be realised or seftted
withim 1.2 months. Other denvatives are prasanted as curmant assets of current liabdiles.

Denvalives embedded in other financial instrumenis ar host confracts are treated as separate derivalives whin
thear risks and charactenstics are nol closely related to those of host contracts and the host contracts are not
camied at fair value through profi or loss.

An embedded derivative is presented as a non-curment assel or a non-current liabdity if the remaining maturty of
the hybrid ingtrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected 1o be realised or setihed within 12 months,
Diher embedded derivatives are presented as cumrent assets or current liabilities.

w) Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative information has been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 Decernber 2012

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ([CONTINUED)

¥}  Use of estimates in the preparation of financlal statements
Critical juckpemants it applyng accouming policies

in the application of the Group's accounting policies, the directars are required o make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the camying amounts of assets and fabilities thal are not readily apgarent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on past experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates

The estimates and underlying assumplions are continually reviewed. Revisions fo accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
rewision and future pericds if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Lisefi We of propery. plant and egquipment and ilangite assels

The delermination of the useful life of the assets is based on past experience involving similar assets, as well as
on forecast changes in the economic environment and industry-specific factors. The useful life s reviewed
annually or whenever there are indications of significant changes in the underlying assumptions. We believe this
accounding estimate is significant considering the considerable share of depreciable assels in the total assets.
Therefore, any change in the underlying assumptions could be material for the Group's financial position and the
reesulls of its operations

impairmeant of novw-Curmen! 35sels

Impasrment is recognised in the financial statements of the Group whenever the net carmying amount of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds the higher of the assefs ie. cash-generating unil's recoverable amount or fair
value less costs to sell. Falr value less costs to sell is determined on the basis of observable inputs from identical
selling transactions under normal markel conditions involving similar asseds or cbservable market prices less
additional costs of disposal

Value in use i measured using fthe discounted cash flow projections.  The mast significant variables in
determining cash flows are descount rates, ime values, the period of cash flow projections, as well as assumplions
and judgements used in determining cash receipts and payments.

Availahiity of faxabhe profits agaist which ihe deferred fax azsels could be recognised

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the relaied tax benefit will be realised

In datermining the amount of deferred taxes that can be recognised significant judgements are required, which are
based on the probable quanitification of time and level of fulure faxable profits, together with the future tax planning
strategy. In 2012, deferred tax assets on available tax differences were recognised The camying amount of
deferred tax aszets is disclosed in Note 16
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Notes o the consolidated financial statements of the Group {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUELD)

x}  Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements (continued)
Actuarial esimates used in defermining employee benelits

The cost of defined benefits is determsned using actuarial estimates. Actuarial estimates involve assumgbons
about discount ratas, future salary increases and the mortality or fluctuation rates. Because of tha long-term
nature of those plans, there is unceriainty sumounding those estimates. At 31 December 2012 provisions for
employes benefits amounted to HRE 297,079 thousand (at 31 December 2011 the total provisions amounied fo
HRE 269 878 thousand) (S Nabe 300

Consequences of cerfain legal actions
Parent and its subsidianes are involved in legal acthons which have ansen from the regular cowrse of iis

operabions. The management makes astimates when the probable outcome of a legal aclion has been assessed,
and the provisions are recognisad on 3 consistent basis (see Mole 30}

Zagrehatii Holding d.o o and fAs subsidiares Zagreh 42



Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
Faor the year ended 31 December 2012

4. PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENTS — RESTATEMENTS TO THE 2010 AND 2011 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
2011. GODINU

During 2012, the Group identified the following changes in accounting policies and corrections regarding prior
pericds where management believes that such corrections result in 8 more appropnate accounting presentation,
The changes of accounting polices and comections were made retrospectively fo the consolidated financial
staternents for the years 2000 and 2011. The resulting effects are sel out in the fables below. Conssderning the
restatements made to prior paricds, the Group reporied the balances for the earliest pericd presented i.e. as of 1
January 2011, as required by International Accounting Standard 8.

Investment properties - JAS 40

Im 2012, the accounting policy Tor inwestment property changed, as & porion of properties previously measured in
accordance with [1AS 16 "Propery, Plant and Equipment” became measured accounted for using ancther Standard
- IS 40 "Investment Propery™ According io the requirements of 1AS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Emors®, the change should be applied retrospectvely to prior periods if applicable. In
2012 all properties falling within the scope of IAS 40 were measured at fair value as appraised by a cerified
valuation expert. To meet the WS 8 requirements, the cerified valuation expert appraised the properies at the
fallowing three dates: al 31 December 2012, and rélraspectively at 31 Decamber 2011 and 31 December 2010
As required by 145 8, all the components for each pericd presented should be restated as if the new policy (1AS
40} had ahweys been applied, as presented in the statements of the financial position and of comprehensive
income for the years 2010 and 2011

Provisions for employee benefits (solidarity suppori) - IAS 19

In 2012 provigions were recognised for solidarity support specified under the Union Agreement (in case of death of
the employee, & member of hisher dose family, purchases of medical aids, childbirth, sick leave beyond 80 days,
ele). The change was made retrospectively, The change was made retrospactvely. The impact of the change in
the accounting policy on the statemants of financial posilion and the statements of comprehensive income for tha
yearg 2010 and 2011 is presentad in this note

Restatemant of inancial expenses and other restatements

Other restatemments comprse mainly corechons of cut-off erors identfied in revenue and expenses initially
recogmsed in the penods in wiuch they arose ratiher than to which they relate. The impact of the restatements is
disciased in thes nofe

The total effects of the cormreclions on the oparating results for the years 2010 and 2011 are presented in the table

bl
A initially reporied Resull, Effect af
the
iskazan rezultat as restated restatements
(in HREK'000) (im HRK' 000} {in HRK'00D)
2010 loss {468,677} (29,077} 439,600
2011 loss (333,689) (467,314) (133.625)
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

- SEGMENT INFORMATION

SALES
20z 2011
As restated
{in HRK'000) (in HRK'000)
Croatian market 4,281,049 40154486
ELl market 3444 31615
4,284,495 4,019,061

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group identified its operaling segments on the basis of infemal reporis about
companents of the Group that are reguiarly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order 1o allocale
resources 1o the segments and to assess their performance. The Group identified its cperating segments on the
bagis of reports regudarly rewviewed by the Management and used by it in making stralegic decisions. Operating
segments have been formed by the nature of the business of the branches managed by the Group (see Note 1),
idendifying nine activities as oparating segmeants, whereas the twelfth segment includes all other actraties of the
Group.

The operaling segments compnse the following

1. Water distribuion

2 Passenger transpori

3. Cheaning and waste ramoval

4. Public rcad management and mainlenance
5 Parking services

6. ‘Warehousing and rendals

7. Wasle disposal and management
8. Facility management

9. Flat construction and sale

10. Gas sale and distribution

11 Pharmaceutical sales

12 Oiher activities

Zagrebadkl Holding d 0.0, and its subsidianes, Zagreb 48



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

& SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

SALES jcontinuad)

Set out below is a breakdown of revenue and results of the Growp by s reporting segments presented in

accordance with IFRS 8. The presented sales compnse sales o third parties.

2012 2011

As restated

{in HREOM) (i HRK000)

Gas distribution and sake 1,328,240 1,198,205
Water distribution revenue 48T 4T1 431,740
Cleaning and waste removal 415 526 416,040
Pasgenger transpor 443 706 NaAdG
Pharmaceutical sales 272185 277699
Publez road mainlenance and management 288,799 265,272
Warehousing and rantals 102,853 112,342
Flat construction and sale 124117 142 566
Parking services 123,718 136,766
Facility management 188,730 182,723
WWasle disposal and management 10,043 16,359
Cither incomea 517,900 520,823
4,284,495 4,019,081

Zagrebadki Holding d o o and iis subsidiaries, Zagreb 4%



Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

SALES (continued)

Other revenue comprises the following:

2012 2011

As restated

_ (in HRK'000) {in HRK'000)

Landscaping and plant growing 164 564 160, 442
Markels revenues 81,327 84,242
Eports facility management and mainienance 73,285 B8 058
Fureral senvices 61,781 65,348
Trada fairs and congresses 43 818 51,389
Bus station 38 182 368,141
Traved agencies 23,633 24 239
Lease of telecom cable and network sysiems 10,547 9,368
Publishing 8,185 9,099
Other income 12,307 8,027
' 517,908 520,923

Zagrabatk Holding d 0.0, and its subsidianes, Zagreb ol
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 Decernber 2012

B, OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2012 201

A% rastabed

(in HRK'000)  (in HRK'000)

Graml and subsidy income 744 957 THE 055
Rewersal of deferred income 244 080 241 484
Recovery of amounis previously wrilten off a8,202 54,450
Income from reversal of provisions 62,070 80,891
Ciamages collected 17,3248 50,756
Imcome from sale of non-current assels, surpluses and wpon revaluation B 582 & 1048
Dther operating income 104,063 o6, 424
1,267,982 1,296,178

Income from grants and subsidies represenis principally the revenue from the City of Zagreb. compriging the

follcrwing:

» financial suppart from the City Budget for purposes approved by the Assembiy
* financial support for the repayment of loans (pancpal, interest, fees),

A5 restated
Ciy af Legret CHhers Tatal City al Zagret hers Totad
{in HRK000) (in HRECODD]  ({in HRKO0D) {in HRETO0) (in HRECOOO)  (in HRICOO0)
ZET 628,042 18,311 646,353 54935 916 168,822 612,738
Others 96,802 1,802 98,604 17,1686 26,151 143,317
Total 724,844 20,113 T44,967 711,082 44,973 756,058

come from reversal of defarred income is recognised in accordance with FAS 20 Accounting for Gowvernment
Grants and Disclosure of Govermment Assisiance over the period of uliisation and is systematically matched

against the related cosls (depreciation) (see Note 3(1))

Zagrebalki Holding d.0.0 and IS subsidkanes do.o  Zagreb
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

6. OTHER INCOME [CONTINUED)

Income from rewersal of provisions relates mainly to the fidllowing:

2012 2011

Ag resiated

{in HRK'000) {im HRK'000)

a) Employee benefit provisions 10,280 336389
b} Litigation provisions, as per the attormey's assessment 11,470 30,430
c} Accrued vacation and other banefits 40,320 23,090
d) Future "Jakudevec” landfill mainienance cosis 3732
62,070 20,891

income from collection of damages, lgwidated damages and other income comprises principally the

fallowing:

2012 2011
As restated
{in HRK'DDO) (in HRE'TD0)
Ftever_sal u!mesanf&nq‘ued expenses for the Sopnica Praoject 1 B4 27 061

following the final calculalicns provided by the contractar I .
Collected damages and liguidated damages 13,470 20,754
Other income {wrile-off of debt, approved discounts and similar) 2213 250
17328 50,756

Income from damages and liquidated damages collected mainly redate to Slanogradnga Branch (HRE 5.8 million)
which charged liguidated damages and faull removal penalties charged 1o the contraciors performing the works on

the Sopnica Praject in accordance with the underhnng construction confracts.

Other operating incoma comprige intermal sales. swplus and othar unspecified incoms

Eagre{:aﬂh. Holding d.0.0. and i1s subsichanes 4.0.0 EEQTED



Netes to the consoclidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

T COST OF MATERIALS AND SERVICES

2012 2011

As restated

{im HRK'000) {in HRK'000)

Energy cosis 281,232 272,766
Cost of raw matenal and suppbes 264 787 249,185
Expansed small tems 18.380 19,342
a) Total material costs 564,399 41,293
b} Changes in the value of inventores of work in progress and finished products 10.254 28,382
¢) Cost of goods sold - B 1313143 1,229 050
Rental and lease costs 209,502 214,161
Maintenance 138,060 130,348
Muricipal utility fees and charges 114,129 107,312
Subcontractor senice cosls 63478 57 318
Transpartation cosis 42 407 38 655
Data processing and software maintenance services 36,749 35,923
insurance premiums 3,515 31,572
Intelleciual services 29,745 27128
Bank and payment operalion changes 9,658 13,465
Advertising and promotion B,571 & G600
Other external services 59 458 47 B85
d) Total external services 741,268 710,425
- 2,629,064 :.Ew'nﬁ;

Zagrebacks Holding 9.0 0. &nd 18 subsidianes d o.o . Zagheb 57



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

B.  STAFF COSTS

2012 2011

Az restated

(in HREDDO) (in HRK'000)

MWet wages and salaries 1,008 450 1.014,423

Taxes and contributions BE5.BT1 698,222

Resmbursement of costs 1o employees and other employees banefits 168 494 130313
T 1863815 1,842,956

Mumber of stalf at 31 December 12_..51_’5\ 12,731

The total staff coste for the year 2012 increased by around HRK 21 milkan (on & net basis), wih the payroll costs
decreasing by approximately 17 million and employee benefits increasing by around HRK 38 million. The average

numbes of stall emphoyved 81 the Group, based on the actual hours worked in 2012, was 12,532

The increase in the employee benefits resulted from the increase in the public trangport prices from 1 March 2012
{HRK 11.1 million). in retirement benefits paid (HRK 21.1 million) and in long-service benefits and other costs

(HRK 5.8 million)

Costs reimbursad io employess and other employee benefils comprise benefits regulated by the Collective
Agreement, such as commutation allowance to the extent of the public transpor costs, gifis and bonuses (long-
service benefits, Christmas and Easber allowances, vacation allowance, and similar), education and advanced

fraining costs and similar

N DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

2012 2011

As restabed

{in HREDOO) (in HRK'D00)

Deprecistion (Male 18) 511,259 584, BES

Amorisation (Note 17) 10462 6,391
VAT on depraciation of personal carg i

621,722 601,260

Zagrebadkl Holding d o 0. and its subsidianes d o.a., Zagreb 58



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

10. OTHER EXPENSES

2012 2011
A% restated
{in HRK'000) {in HRK'000)
Administrative fees and court costs 16,845 14,011
Taxes and confributions independent of oparating resulls &,6A7 7.581
Professional organisation membership fees (Croatian Chamber of Economy, 6.021 3 818
Tourist Board, and others) :
Entartainmant 2,365 1,653
Professional iterature 1.375 1,208
Cultural monument fees and anvironmantal profachion cosls B41 955
Fees o Supervisory Board members Bz 1.230
Cither axpenses 247 445
35887 31,040
11.  IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCE OM CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS
2012 2011
Az restated
(inHRK'000)  (In HRK'0DO)
Impairment allowance on current assels 178,174 152,785
Impairment allowance on non-current assets 4,804 122,336
244078 275,101

Included in the mpairment alowance on non-current assets are unrealised losses ansen on changes in the fair
value of investment property in the amount of HRK 582 million (2011: unrealised losses in the amount of HRK

118,B million).

12.  PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES

2012

{in HREDOO)

Provisions under A3 13 Employes Benefils 37.841
Libgation provisicns 34 068
Provisions for unused vacalion days 23185
Prosisions for the restoration of natural resources 11,172
106, 246

Zagrebatki Holding d 0.0, and is subsidiaries d 0.0 . Zagreb

2011
Asg restated

lin HRKC000)

10,328
8.585
38,505

58,410
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
Far ﬂuzyear ended 31 December 2012

13. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

201z 2011

As restated

{in HREKOO0) {in HRECO00)

Fines, penalties. damages 27219 21,528

Whitten-off recaivablas 5923 18,031

Grants, donations and sponsarships 2.TG66 2,066

Mel book value of assets sold or otherwise disposed of 2.039 2,531

Other oparating expenses 12.669 15,740
50,618 EEE

Damages relale principally to ZG0S Branch in respect of enwironmental protection fee payable al a rate of HRK 50
per ton of disposed municipal wasie on the Jakuievac Landfill

The balance of written-off receivablas for the year 2012 relabes mainly to Cistota Branch (2011 Lagrebparking
Branch) which were estimated as imecoverable.

Other operating expenses comprise deficts, cost of inventories sold, subsequently identified costs and expenses not
specified above

Zagrebgtki Holding d 6 6. and its subssdianes d .o, Zagheb =L



Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

Far the year ended 31 December 2012

14. FINANCIAL INCOME

Firancial incame - unrelated entities
Financial income - related anlities

Oiher fimancial income

Financtal income comprises the following:

Imlengsl income

Farsign exchange gains
Other financial mcome

2012 2011
As restated

in HRK'000) {in HRICOOO)
58,205 100,783

44 350

8,007 1,567
66,256 111,670

2012 2011

As restated

{in HRK'000) {in HRK'000)
41,878 16 846
15,353 62,23
5,025 12,503
. e6256 111,670

The net exchange loss for 2012 amounts to HRK 4.8 million (2011; net exchange loss of HRK £1.3 million}).

Diher financial income comprisas mainly income from discounting of recenables and payables and olber financial

InCome

Zagrebatk Holding d 0.0, and its subsidianes d 0.0, Zagreb
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the  year ended 31 December 2012

15. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

2012 2011
As restated
{in HRK'000) (In HRK'000)
Financial incoms - unrelated antities 401,720 505,906
Financial expenses - related enlities a8 1,593
Oiher financial expenses 1.553 1,835
o 403,309 509,334

Financial expenses from transactans with unrelated entities comprise the following:
2012 2011
As restated
{in HRK'000) {in HRK'D0D)
Inferest expense 324 G924 a02 A&7
Interest on leases 54, 712 B0,019
Foreign axchange losses 20,211 143,527
Oither 1,873 3
401,720 505,906

I 2012 Financial expenses decressed compared fo 2011 because of the lower balance of foreign exchange

losses, as the exchange rate of the Euwro against the Croatian kuna was higher in 2011 than in 2012

Cither financial expenses comprise mainly the expense with respect to the discount of receivablas.

Zagrebadki Holding d o.0. and is subsidiaries d.o.o., Zagreb
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

16. INCOME TAX

The Group is not subject to taxation, but entities forming the Group are. Corporate income fax is determined by

applying the rate of 20% o the laxable Income

Tax expense recognised in profit or loss

imnz 2011
As rastated
(i HRK'000) (in HRK000)
Income tax expense comprises the following:
Curren tax (7.217) 8,272
Deferrad tax expense on the ongination and reversal of temporary (1,601 2211
diffarences
Tax income | {expense) (8,818) _ m_l:lﬁ'.].
The redationship between the accounting profit and tax creditexpensa) for the year
2012 2011
A% restaled
{in HREDD0O) {in HREDOD)
Loss before taxation (335, 906) (481,253)
Income tax al the rate of 20% (2011: 20%) {67,199) (92.251)
Effect of permanent differences, nat 167,502 21,886
Effect of temporary differences recognised as deferred tax assats 7.285 {1.567)
Effect of unrecognised and unused tax losses brought forward {88,770} 77,903
Tax (incomejlexpense recognised in profit or loss 8,818 g,_ng*l
Unused tax losses:
2012 2011
As restated
{in HRK'000) {in HRK'00D)
Balance at beginning of the year (TT4,65T) (522.834)
Increase during the year (G3d) (251 823)
Decreases during the year 483 B850
Balance at end of year (281, 441) {TT4,65T)

Tax losses available for camy farward that onginate from 2008 expire in 2074, and those incurred in 2010 expire in

2015

I&greb.;e:hl Hﬂwlﬂg d oo, and ifs subsidianes d oo Eagreﬂ
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Motes to the consclidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

For the yvear ended 31 Decamber 2012

17.  INTANGIBELE ASSETS

Cost or valuation
Accumulated amortisation

The structure of intangible assets is as follows:

Patents, concessions and similar rights
Development expenses

Intangible assets under developmant
Orther intangible assets

IMM22012 31212011 01/01/2011
Ag restated Ag restated

fin HRK000) {in HRK'000) (in HRK'000)
188,347 157,385 152 B75
(144 951) B {135,763) _ {132.283)
54,445 21,622 20,422
22012 I 22011 01/01/2011

As restated As restated

{in HREE'GO3) (i HREQO0O) {in HREOD)

22.324 11,648 0,428

17.859 381 1.220

7.592 3,462 4,008

6,671 6,133 5 765

54,446 21,622 20,422

GE

Zagrabatki Holding d.o.0. and s subsidiaries d oo, Zagreb
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Notes to the consolidated financial staternents of the Group (continued)

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

JTM2rz02 IR0 01/01/2011
A5 restated As restated
{in HRK'DDO) fif HRK'000) {in HRK'00)
Cost or valuation 22708 969 22475772 21,513,727
Accumulated deprecialion or Impairman (T TZ2B4T2) (7,187 2187) (6,611,003}
14,980,497 15,288,486 14,702,724
Frepayments mads 52.697 56, D84 70,733
Total 16,033,194 15,345 468 14,773,457

Structure of property, plant and equipmeant;
MMnanzoiz 322011 010112011
As restated Ag restated
{in HRK'000) {in HRK 000} (i HRE'000)
Buiildings 7,877 233 8,131,113 B.332,433
Land 4412 410 4411877 4,525,249
Tools and vehicles 1,627 5493 1,717,788 1,805,209
Tangible assels under construction B43, 436 624,296 640,313
Plam and sguipment 380 545 353,124 349,258
Biological assets 28 13 14
Oither tangible assels 50,252 50,268 50,147
14, 980,497 15,288,485 14,702,724

Movements in prepaymenits:

M2 AN 01012011
A; restated As restated
(i HRK'00G) {in HREGOO) {in HRE'0O0)
Opening balance 56,984 70,733 141,761
Actditions 2,026 G622 172
Disposals and redirements (8,313} (14,37) (71,200)
Closing balance 62,897 BB, 9B4 70,733
Zagrebathi Hodding d oo, and ite subsidianes, Zagreb 28
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Title to land and buildings

The registration of the Group's titke to land and buildings in appropriate registers, serving as evidence of
ownarship, is in progress. Since some municipal registies have not been fully updated, the process of registering
the properies is longer than for new structures, In addition, the City of Zagreb has sumendered a significant
portion of its assels o be managed by the Group, The status of such assels has not been fully defined. A part of

fsose properties has been registerad but the status of the remaining properties is still pending.

An overview of the fixed assel (land and bulldings) ownership structure s presanted below:

Land {at revalued amount)

Reqisterad titka
Unregisterad, eligible for registration
Unregestered, not ligible for registration

Buildings (at cost)

Regisiersd litle

Unregisterad. eligible for regisiration
Unregisterad, not eligibde for registraton
Communal infrastruciure facilities

IMH22012 322011 01/01/2011
A5 resiated AE rastaled

{in HRE'000) (in HREDOO) (in HRH'O0G)
333241 2,931,971 2,585,140
703,001 1.1893.7 B268.515
378, 998 2BE6 BBY 213 584
4,412,410 4,411,877 3,525,248
IMM220M2 311212011 010172011
As restated As restated

{in HRK00) {im HRK'000) (in HRK'000)
3,674,740 3278 1Y 2,348 BB2
1,152 433 1.684 035 1,625 846
830 913 436,982 1,362,233

T 821,035 1,736,843 7675515
13,279,121 13,134,578 13,012,376
Fill

Zagneback Holding d o.o0. and 12 subsidianes, Zagreb




Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
_F_ur tne year ended 31 Dacember 2012

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
Review of residual values

Following the requirements of 1o IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipmant that are sffective for the current period, the
Group reviewed the residual values used for the purposes of depreciation calculations in the light of the amended
definition of residual value in the revised Standard. The review did not highlight any requirement for an adjusiment
i the residual values used in the current or price periods.

Impairment of assels

Under |AS 36, the carrying amount should be compared to the recoverable amount @ach time when there is an
indication of impairment and, if higher, written down to the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an
asset is greater of (i) ned selling price if the asset can be sold and (i} value in use, which is the net present value of
futwre cash flows based on reasonable and supportable assumpbions thal represent management’s best estimate
of the future economic conditions and plans. In the opinion of the Management Board, the camying amount of
tangibde assels presented above is recoverable from future operations.

Assets pledged as collateral
IMMazot2 22011 010172011
As restated Ag restated
{in HRK () {in HRK'000) {in HRK'000)
Real eslain 83 530 a1, 798 08,625
Pledged movable property 53,375 61,000 78,401
= 136,005 152,798 177,026

Capltalised borrowing costs under IAS 23

In 2012, the Group capitalised borrowing costs in the ameunt of HRK 17,872 thousand (2011: HRK 14,880
thousand) The weighted average capelalisation rate was 5.7 percent

Zagrebatki Holding d.o.0. and is subsidianes, Zagreb P



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
_FrJr the year ended 31 Decemiper 2012

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ([CONTINUED)
Leases

The Group entered into several lease agreements during 2008 and 2008, which have been accounted for and
presanted in the accompanying consolidated financial statements as operating leases. However, the dassificataon
of those agreemsants at the inception is not compliant with the provisions of International Accounting Standard 17
"Leases” (IAS 17), according to which, a lease where the present value of minemum future paymenis under the
lease agreement approamates the fair value of the leased asset is dassified as a financial lease, which is more
similar o the nature of the leases entered into by the Group.

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

J1212012 I 22011

As restated

(in HRHE'000) {im HRE'D00)

At 1 January 2,823,683 28432 460

Fair value change (net) (59.297) (118.777)
At 31 December z,ii;-t,:ms . -__z,m:-.,m '

During 2012 investment properies were remeasured at fair value on the basis of appraisals by a cenified propery
appraisal expen, upon whech bosses rasulling from the chamge in the fair valuas in the amount of HEK 58 297
thousand wera inchuded in the intomea slatemeant for the yaar 2012 (Mote 11).

Zagrebacki Hodding d 0.0, and it subssdianes, Zagreb T2



Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (comtinued)

For the vear anded 31 December 2012

20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

22012 Iz 01/01/2011
As restated As restated
{in HRKQO0) {in HRK'000) (in HRK'D00)
Current portion
Helg-to-maturity investments at amorised cost 40,278 56813 23343
40,279 56,813 23,343
Long-term portion
Financial assats at fair valua 521 543 BT
Held-to-maturity investments at amortised cost 115,083 114 416 113,015
Fimancial assels available for sale 6918 6,868 TA75
1252 121,827 120,807
322012 322011 01/01472011
A restabed A% restaled
fin HRIC'00G) * {in HRICDOD] {in HRICOOD)
.;:'Tﬂtnih:: ;:-‘th at fair value through 521 543 817
Currenl povtion
L cwrig=herm Ortaoet 521 543 a7

Includad in participating fnterests ara financial assefs (shares) carried at fair value through profd or loss. The
shares represant mon-controlling interests held in Zagrebalka banka d.d. and Samoborska banka d.d. in which

the Group has no significant influence

Zagretatki Holding d 0.0, and its subsidanes, Zagreb
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Held-to-maturity investments at amortised cost

311212012 311212011 01/01/2011

As restated As restated

(i HRE 000 {in HRE M) {in HRK'000)

Deposits with maturities over one year 115,083 114,415 113,014

Deposite with materities of up to one year 33685 53,544 20,619

Cither held-to-maturity securities 6,593 3270 2,725

165,362 nas 136388

Currer poviion 40,279 56,813 23,343

Lovg-ferm portion 115,083 114 418 113,015

I 22012 I 212011 01012011

As regtated As restated

{in HRK'000) (im HRK'000) fin HRK'000)

Financial assets available for sale G918 i BE3 TATS
Crirranl porfion

Long-term poriion 6,918 G868 7175

Zagrebadki Holding d 0.0, and ils subsidearies, Zagreb 74




MNotes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

21. NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES

Long-term portion

Amounts owed by related parbes

Receivables for investments in govermnment bonds
Loan recelvables

Recaivables in respect of credil sales

Mher receivables

Current portion - Notes 23 and 27
Receivables from related companies (Mote 23)

Receivabdas for loans with matwities after 1 yaar (Note 27)

Receivables for loarns with maluities up to 1 year (Note

27)
Receivables in respect of credit sales (Note 27)
Other receivables (Note 27)

Zagrebatki Holding d.o.o and its subsidianes, Zagreb

M0 322011 010472011
As restated As restated

fir (i fim
HREK'OO00) HRE'000) HRE000)
1,073,238 1,203 4849 1,302 147
13,786 13,330 13.334
13,908 15,385 18,832
15245 14 384 15 5904
626, 506 G50, 082 BA7 715
1,744 683 1,896,740 2017752
132 443 132176 128,658
1,428 1,846 1,884

4 8971 G 865 16,158
1,830 1,811 2 487
28,320 2B 442 27,818
169,093 171,240 177,114
75



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group {continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

e m—— .

21. NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Included in kong-term receivables from related parties are amounis due for works and senvices delivered as well as

loans provided to related parties.

Long-term recelvables from related companies

J1E012 22011 04/0112011

As restated As restated

{in HRK'00D) {in HRK'000) {in HRK'000)

Recaivablas from the cwner 1,297 442 1,350,417 1,448 180
Impairment allowance on recelvables from the cwner i11,781) (14,752) (15,374)
1,208 681 1,335,666 1,430,806

Currem porion 132 443 132 176 128,658
Lewrg-term portion 1,073 238 1,203 485 1.302 147

Recelvabies from the owner comprise amounts owed by the City of Zagreb under guarantees furnished for long-
berm loans of JET Branch in the amownt of HRK 505 688 thousand (2011: HRK 609,735 thousand) and in raspect
of funding 50 percent of the lease costs for the sports facility Arena Zagreb in the amount of HRK 6535237
thousand (2011: HRK 684 265 thousand), whereas the remaining balance of HEE 44 656 thousand (2011 HRK

41 665 thousand) represents receivables for consinuected roads

Receivables for investments in government bonds

322012
{in HRECGOD)
Irvestmants in governmiant bonds (frozen FX
3 17,218
deposits)
Impairment allowance on receivables for (3,432)
T e T T TH T T T LN PN
' 13,786
Carer portion
Lewrg-farmm partian 13,786

Zagrebacki Holding d.o.o and its subsidianes, Zagreb

M1
As restated
-

HREK' D00
16,815

(3.425)

13,380

13,350

iz

&g restated

(in HRK'DDO)
15,694
(3.360)

13,334

13,334

Fi:



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

FUE NI o acamioe 2012

21. MNON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Receivables for loans with maturities after 1 year

IMMRre2 IMMzzon 01/01/2011
As reslaled Ag restated
(in HREO0) [in HRED) fin HREO00)
Long-terrm kans (o unrelated companies 2112 3,206 3,774
Lomg-term koans 1o the Managemeant and employees 17,720 18,072 20,5682
Impairment allowance on given kbans (2,454) {5,047} (3.820)
17,338 72 20,516
Currmant partion 1,429 1,646 1,884
Lang-ferm portion 15,909 15 385 18,632
Receivables for loans due within up to 1 year
S22 MR M0t
As rastabed A% rgslated
{in HRK'000) (in HRK000) {in HRK000)
Short-1arm [sans to unnelated companies 37.551 30,887 46 845
Impairment allowance on given loans {32.580) (32 822) {30,689)
4,971 6,865 16,156
Cuvrent portion 4,971 6,865 16,156
Long-tesm portian

Zagrebatki Holding d.o.o and its subsidianies, Zagreb




Notes to the consaolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

i vt 1t

21.  NOMN-CURRENT RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Receivables in respect of credit sales

oz N 22011 04/01/2011

&5 restated Ag restated

(i HRK'000) (i HREDOO) {in HRK 000}

Receivables for flals sold 18,988 22,088 24176
Value adjustment on discount (2.811) 15,783 (5,775
Discount rale in % T.2% 7.2% B.2%
7478 16,295 18,401

Curment podtion 1,930 1,811 2487
Long-termm poriiodn 15,245 14, 384 15,904

Recelvables for fats sold are discounted each year using the rate thal reflecis the yield rate on the Croatian

government bonds, which was 4.2 percent in 2012 (2011 7.2%)

Other non-current receivables
2092 22011 /2011
s resiated A5 raskabed
(im HRIK'000} (in HREGO0) {in HRE'OG0)
Recevahlas from the State 651 947 G714 500 601,252
Oither receivables 2 B8g 3834 4 401
_ EE-_.E_EE _B'.I"__E.EH- 695,663
Current parfion 28,320 28 442 27818
Long-term povion B26, 506 650,082 BET, T35

Recefvables from the state in the amount of HEK G674 600 thousand {2011 HRE 674,000} comprse amounts
owed by the Croatian Government in respec] of funding 50 percend of the Arena Sports Hall rental costs

Zagrebatki Holding d.o 0. and ils subsidiaries, Zagreb



Motes fo the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
Fior Ih_e_ year ended 31 December 2012

22. INVENTORIES

MHH22012 3Nz 01012011

As restated As restated

{in mu'nﬂﬂT {in HRK'000) (in HRK'0DO)

Raw material and supplies 116,886 133,258 140,069
Work in progress 134,501 150,147 133,671
Finished products 512,203 527,360 531,170
Merchandise {and property in carculaboen) 24,138 248,083 32,048
Prepayments for inventorias TG4 122 543
788,454 840,020 837,701

Inveriones are broken down into raw matenal and supplies, which are expensed immediately when put into use,
work in progress, finished products, merchandise and prepayments for imventorias.

Work in progress comprses residential and commarcial blocks in the quarer Sopneca-Jelkovec and the
preparation for the construction works in the quarter PodbreZje. The Sopnica-Jelkovec structures were completed
in late 2008, and the balance of work in progress as of 31 December 2012 was HRE 128.3 milkan and relates to
the portion of the Sopnica Jelkovec Project siill pending and the project documentation and purchase of land at the
ipcation Podbredje (20111, 1442 million).

Finished products comprise finshed flats and business premises in the quarter Sopnica Jelkovec that are available
for sale and amounted to HRK 435 millicn 21 31 December 2012 (2011.. 511.8 million).

Cast of inventories recognised as expense for the year amounds 1o HRK 10.2 milion (2011 HRK 28.3 million) and
relates lo the costs recognised for the flats sold (Note 7).

23,  AMOLUNTS OWED BY RELATED PARTIES

.y [ P JnMizo 42041
As resfated As restated

fin {in {in
HREK D00} HR 00 HRE'G00)
Receivahlas from the ownes 281,172 373,188 468 134
g:;-rm partion of long-term receivables from the owner (Note 132,443 132 176 128,650
413,615 £05,374 596,783

Zagrebatki Holding d 0.0 and s subsidianies, Zagred 4



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

24, TRADE RECEIVABLES

J2z 1212011 0110172011

As restaled As restated

{in HRK'000) {in HRK'00D) {in HRK000)

Trade receivables 1,728 536 1,618,270 1,602,198
Imparment aflowance on rade receivabbes {540, 7455 (595, 5596) (515,845)
1,087,701 1,020,274 1,086,254

Trede receivables are carried at amortised cost. Late-payment interest is charged on outstanding balances af
rates prescribed by law. The Group recognises an aflowance for all trade debfors past due beyond 365 days
Allowances for doubtful debls are recognised against trade receivables bebween 120 and 365 days based on
estimated imecoverable amounts defarmined by raference to past default expenence of the counterpary and an
anakysis of the counterpary’'s current financial postion.

Trade accounts receivable are reviewed al least bvice annually, and reminders are sent for past due amounts,
whereas forced collection proceedings are initiated for bad and doubtiul sccownts (distress and kegal actons)

Receivabies for delivered municipal senices to individuals and businesses are not covered by any financial
instruments. Receivables for other senices delivered o commercial businesses are secured with various financial
instrumeants (bills of exchange, debentunes, bank guarantees and similary,

Zeorebatki Holding d 0.0 and its subsidianes, Zagreb BO



Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

In determining the recoverability of a frade receivable, the Company considers the business segmant (communal
or marke{ activities, because of different faciors affecting the pricing and delivery of those senvices) and the type of
customer (citizens or businesses because of different statutes of limitations). The communal cperations are
governed by separale laws, and the related receivables are not secured by financial instruments. Trade accounts
receivable from otfver activilies are secured by warious insirumenis (bills of exchange, promissory nofes,

debeniures, ete. ).

&5 of the reporting date. the Company made an allowance for all accounts outstanding beyond 365 days, based
on an estimale made by commissions for assessing collectability of receivables, as well as for all debtors
outstanding up to 365 days (120 - 365 days) because, according 1o the past defaull history, they are considerad

doubtful of collection

Ageing of past due but not impaired:

2012

As restabed

(in HRICOOO)

0-50 days 203,030
&0-180 days 84 405
180-385 days B4 117
Onoer 365 days 253,118
634,670

2011

As reslated
(in HRK'000)
176,287

0§ 492
79,936

232 :?4]"

5BT 462

Receivables past due beyond 365 days, bul nod impaired comprise receivables of the Group on its own behalf, bt

far the account of clher parbes (recefvables for water freatment for the account of 200

Movement in impairment allowance for doubtful accounts

iz 2011

As restated As resiated

(in HRER00) (in HRKD00)

Balance at beginning of the year 555,996 515,546
impairment losses recognised :tEuE_'i"T"-l 153.533_

Amounts writlen-off s uncolleclible {25, 122) (18,029}

Amauints recovensd during the year (BB, 803) {54, 459)
Balance at end of year N _EJ_EIT-IE __EE.EBE-

Zagridbacki Holduhg d 0.6 and 18 subsidianes Jagrat B1



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Ageing analysis of impaired trade recelvables

2012 2011
As restabed
(in HRKD00) {in HRK'D0O)
120-180 days 2,680 2.004
180-365 days 8,325 6,480
Cwer 365 days 629,730 587 512
640,745 595,986
25, AMOUNTS DUE FROM EMPLOYEES

322012 322011 012011
Mg resiated As reslabed
{in HRK000) {in HRE'DO0) {in HRK'000)
Amounts dus from employees 4 562 3852 3453
Impairment allowance on amounts due from employees {1,348) (1,348) {1,372)
3,208 2,304 2,081

26. RECEIVABLES FROM THE STATE AND OTHER INSTITUTIONS
M2 I 2201 0102011
As restaled As resfaled
{in HRK'00D) {in HRK'00D) {in HRE 000}
WAT receivable 14,732 10,004 2 644
Recewvables from the Croatan Stabe Health Insurance Fund B.0O71 5,303 7,700
Income tax refund 1,632 2,038 6,214
Diher laoes, coninbubons and amounts recenvable 1,328 B41 1,200
23,763 18,186 17,758
Zagrebatki Holding d.o o and its subsidianes, Zagreb az



Notes to the consolidated financial staternents of the Group (continued)

Far the year ended 31 December 2012

27. OTHER RECEIVABLES

322012 3122011 01/01/2011

Az restated As restated

(in {in {ir

HRE'003) HRK'D0O) HRBKO00)

Prepaid expenses and accrued income 82,270 72,084 T2.687

Prepayments made 41,485 8,066 8,830

Currant portion of long-lemm receivables (Note 21) 36,850 359,064 48 455
Receivables from insurance companses and clher damages

A 1,318 958 1.588

Impairment allowance an prepaymenis (2,398) (2 388) {2, 388)

Other receivables 1,583 8,040 7,258

170,919 125,824 137,570

Prepaid expenses and accrued income comprise amounts paid in advance that are chargeable 1o future periods,
acocruad income nol yet billed, accrued mteras! and fees on loans that are apportioned over the perods of the laan
repayment using the effectve inferest rate, deferred bond isswe costs (discount allocated annually o expenses for

the period at the effectve interest rate up to 2017)

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

IMMaizo2 I 2zo11 010142011
As restated As restated
{in HRK'0D0) (in HRK'000) {in HRK'0DO)
Curmrenl account balance - HREK denomanated 7 68 131,263 113,874
Cash in hand 1,985 1,669 1,810
FX current account balance 3,013 3,200 2,0M
Foraign-currency cash in hand 8 11 20
Otiver cash (court ordered deposits and similar) 8,030 7,7a0 7.5M
90,730 143,903 'IH.-!;EE

Zagrebatkl Holding d 0.0, and its subsidianes, Zagreb a3



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 Decembar 2012

29,  EQUITY
a) Share capital

The Company’s sole cwner is the City of Zagreb. At 31 December 2012, the share capital of the Group amounts io
HRE 4,208 629 thousand (31 Decambear 2011: HRK 4,208 629 thowsand)

b}  Revaluation reserve
Revaleation reserve has been established on the revaluation of land and financial assets available for sale. On

disposal of 8 revalued asset the portion of the revaluaton surplus attnbutable to the asset is transferred o
retained eamings

a2 2201

As restated

(in HREDD0) (ire HRR'O00)

Balance at beginning of the year 2,856,968 2,162 698
Revaluation surplus {208) BET BES
Deferred tax Eabilities arging from revaluation 41 {173,573
Balance at end of year 2,856 823 2,856,088

c) Reserve on revaluation of invesiments in available-for-sale financial assets

202 3MM22011

As restabed

{in HRK'DD0) {in HRIK'00O)

Balance at beginning of the year 4,585 4,801
Revaluation surplus 47 (258)
Deferred tax liabilites anising from revaluation 9 52
Balance at end of year - :I?I!- 4 555

Zagrebatki Holding d.o.o and is subskdianes. Jagieb Bd



MNotes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

Far the year ended 31 Decembser 2012

29. EQUITY (CONTINUED)

d)  Other reserves

Dther resenes repored in the statement of financial position al 31 December 2012 in the amount of HRE 87 300
thousand comgprise to the share capital of two companies merged in 2001 (Grad mladih Granedina d.o.o. and
Omladinski turistitki cantar d.o.o.) to a Branch. for which no share capital was increased by HRK 15,125 thousand,

as well as reserves formed as per the Decision of the Assembly regarding assets gramed by the City of Zagreb in

e amount of HRK B2 175 thousand,

al {Accumulated losses)refained eamings

At 1 January
Loss for the year
At 31 December

Non-controlling inferests

At 1 January
Profit filoss) for the year
At 31 December

322012 Inaizon o101/2011
_ As mﬂal&d_ F.:: r:ada.lli

{in HRF000) {in HRK'000) {in HRK'00O)

262 4448 TE1,400 THEa, 672
__t}‘-_-ﬂﬁ_.ﬁﬁ_:l {468,951) {25.2_?2_!1_

{54,247) 292,449 761,400

JH A 2 M2 010172011

As restated As resialed

{in HRICDO0) {in HRK'000) {in HRK'000)

1,068 (568) 236

1,882 1,637 (805)

2,950 1,068 {569)

B5

Jagrebadki Holding d 0.0 and it subsidianes, Zagrab



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

30, PROVISIONS

322 MMz 01012011
As restated As restaled
(in HRK000) {in HRED00) {in HRK'000)
Provisions for employee benefits under IAS 19 287,979 289,878 300,322
Litigation provisions 156,928 135,521 148,759
Provisions for the landfill restoration 35 022 24,284 28,024
Current partion {B7,630) (35,171) [40,588)
422,299 394 522 437 817
Current obligation (Note 40) 67,630 35,171 40,588
Long-term obigatian 422,299 394,522 437517
488,329 429,693 478,105
Discount rate applied to employes
benafits and landfill rehabilitation 5% 7.2% 8.2%
Balance and mowements of lang-term provisions:
Provisions Frovisions Provislons
{in HRKDDO) for employees for legal for landfill Total
benefits actions rehabilitation
Balance at 1 January 2011 300,322 149,759 28,024 478,105
Mew provisions mada 6,257 T.520 - 13,577
Reversed provisions/Amounts paid {36,701) (21,558) {3,730) (61,969)
Balance at 31 December 2041 269.E74 138,521 24,294 425,693
Hew provisions mada 438972 31,932 10,728 66,632
Reversed provision&iAmounts paid {15,B71) 110,525} (26, 396)
Balance at 31 December 2012 297,979 156,928 35,022 489,829
Zagrebaéki Holding d.o.o. and is subsidiaries, Zagreb 5]



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
Far the year ended 31 December 2012

30. PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)

The obligation to make provisions for employes benefits arises from the Collective Agreement, and the level of
provisions was determined in accordance with IAS 19 Employes Benefits. They consists of provisions for
termination and retirement benefits, long-service benefits and sofidanty support. They ane measured at the present
value of costs expected 1o be incurmed 1o seftle the obligation, using a discount rale of 5 percent (2011; 7.2%)

The landfill rehabilitation provision redates fo the cost of maintenance and surveillance over the Jakusevac Landfill
over the next 30 years from its wind-up for environmental protection purposes in accordance with IAS 37
Provisions, Cortingant Liabibties and Contingent Ass#ls. The provisions ane discounbed.

Lifigaticn provision relates fo provisions allocated for legal actions initiated againsi the Pareni and its subsidianes
fallowing the knowledge of & ciaim being initiated and on the basis of the estimated final outcome of the litigation
In the opinion of the management, the level of provisions is sufficient to cover any future potential llabilibes

3. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Inaizonz NAZ201 01/01/2011
As restabed As reslated
© {in HRK'D0O) (in HRECODD) {in HRK'D0D)

Long-term borrowings
Loans and bormowings payable 1,715,080 1,832.237 2140712
Finance lease obligations 1,128 147 1,239,368 1,316,348
2843237 3171608 3457,060

Short-term borrowings
Loans and borrowings payabile 1,310,648 1,065 623 808 809
Finance lease obligations 112,340 107 980 102,049
Odher a7 8951 88,713 84 B43
1,510,939 1,270,316 995,301
Total loans and borrowings 4,354 176 4441921 4452, 361

Long-lerm and shor-term bank loans are secured by bills of exchange, promissory notes, debeniures and cession
agresments worth in lotal HRK 1,923,173 thousand, account pledges in the amount of HRE 206 456 thousand, &
bank depaosit in the amount of HRE 56 000 thousand, Ben on real estate in the amownt of HRK 85 530 thousand
lken on movable property in the amount of HRK 53,375 thousand and & guarantee of the City of Zagreb in the
amount of HRK 611,168 thousand

Some of the foreign bank loans are subject to restrictive financial and operaling covenants The covenants, as
defined in the applicable lcan agreaments, speciically reguire from the Comparny to mest cenlaen prescrbed evels
of the following ratios: operating ratio, debt senvice coverage, internal cash generation, tangible net worth capétal,
and nel barrownngs. Al 31 December 20712 the Company was compliant with all the financial covenants

Zagrebalk Holding d.0 .6 and s subsidianes, Zagreb a7



MNotes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

For the year anded 31 December 2012

3. LDANS AND BORROWINGS [CONTINUED)

Movements in non-current leans and borrowings

INM22012 22011 01:/01/2011
AEs restated As rastabad
(in HRIDDO) (in HREOO0) (im HRE'D00)
Balance at 1 January 2257 116 2413 8514 2654 359
Mew loans raised 68, 124 46 G2A 28213
Amoants repaid (328,336) (228.412) (282 458)
Effect of exchange differences 2,181 24,566 135 800
Balance at 31 Decembear 2,000,085 2,257 116 2413914
Cument portion {284 005) (324 870) (273,202)
Long-bann portion 1,715,090 1,932,237 2,140,712
J1TM22012 J1M22011 1/01/2011
Az restated Az rastated
(in HRK '000) (in HRK '000) (in HRK '000)
Within one year 284 505 324 879 273,202
In the second fo inclusive the fifth year 1,076 314 1,061 028 1,051 835
Adter five years G387 841,209 1,088 773
2000085 2,257,116 2,413,914

Analysis by currency:
JT2rao2 M 22011 o120
s restated As restated
fin HRED00) (in HRK'D00) {in HRK'000)
HRK @06 200 1.000,643 1,085 066
EUR 1,083,885 1,256,473 1.318 828
2,000,085 2,257,116 2,413,914
Zagrebalki Holding d.o.o and its subsidianes, Zagreb a4



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

31. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Finance lease obligations
Prasenl vatue
Minirnum lease paymernis
of minimum lease paymaents
22012 22011 01012011 M2 AN 010172011
Wihin one year 158,951 166 222 155,611 112,340 107,940 102 048
In the sacand 1o
inclusive the fifth
WEEr 01,730 G57 506 E36,055 242 373 455 832 474 558
After five years 1,038 044 1,160,878 1.295 160 GBS AT4 773536 841 7TH
1,788,715 1,084 306 7 DBE 83T 1,240 487 1,347 348 1,418,387
Less: future
finance chamges (555 228) E3T 254 {558 430)
Prasand valug of
Frenimuem ledise 1,240 487 1,347,344 1,418,347
payments
Included in ihe financial statements within
Curreni Eabilfss [Nole - Cunrenl Bormswings) 112,340 107 QB0 102,045
Curnani Eabikties (Mot - Mon-current loans and borresings) 1128, 147 1,239, 368 1316 348

1,240,487 1,347 348 1418387

Finamce lease obligations relate to equipment (vehicles) and & building leased for & penod of 5 - 28 years.
Foliowing the axpiry of the lease, the Group hags an oplion 1o purchase the leased items at contraciually agreed
values The Group's lkabilities under financial leases are sacurad by the ttle of the lessor to the leased assets. Tha
average interest rate applied in determining the financial lease payments was 4 2% (2011 4 2%).

Zagrebacki Holding d 0.0, and 1% subsidianes, Jagreb 2]



Motes to the consaolidated financial statements of the Group {(continued)

FRC U Y M i 201

31.  LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Financlal instruments (continued)

Presant value of items under financial lease armangements;

Cost

Accumulated deprecsatan

Met book value
At 3122019

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Met book value
At 1212012

Shori-term loans and borrowings

Shori-tarm loans and borrawings
Ehort-term loans and borrowings
Courranl povtice of long-tenm

harrowings

Financial leases (curment pomion)
Other (inerast on borrowings and bonds)

Eagretm‘_hu Holding @.0.0 2nd 15 SubDSIdanes

Tools and

Buildings vohicion Total
{in HRK'DOO) (in HRK 0 {in HREK'O0)
818 881 853,074 1,871,855
{30, 708} ST, T {155_.*_1533_
THBATI 595,315 1,483,488
818,881 B53.074 1,671,955
(40,944) (194,447) {235,385)
TIT.937 B5B.633 1,436,570
el Tk iy I MM 010452011
As restated Az resfaled
{in HRK'000) {in HRIK'000) {in HRK'00)
1,310,848 1,085,623 808,609
1,025 653 740 744 535 407
284 505 324,879 273,202
112,440 107,980 102,048
8T 881 95 713 a4 543
1,510,939 1,270,316 895,301
Zagreh ag



Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

For the year eénded 31 December 2012

3. LOANS AND BORROWINGS [CONTINUED)
Financial instruments [continued)

Movements in short-term loans and borrowings

HH22012 Inzrzon G1/01/2011
As restated Az restated
in {in {in
HRK'000) HRK'000) HRK'000)
Balance at 1 January 1,065,623 808 609 837,778
Proceeds from new loans 1.931.989 1,013,168 B16.274
Repayment of current partion of ron-currend loans and
bommowings (1.175,134) (273,202) (277.383)
Current portion of lang-term bormowings 284 945 324 A79 273,202
Amounts repaid (797 874) {815 536) {445,611)
Effect of exchange diffarences 1,049 T.705 5319
Balance at 31 December 1,310,648 1,065,623 B0E 60G
MHazpz M2 002011
As restated As restated
{in HRICTO0) fin HREDDO) {im HRK'000)
HRK 5048, 7TE 240,000 240,000
EUR 518,875 500,744 205,407
1,025,853 TADT44 535,407
Zagrebatkl Holding d 0.0, and its subsidianes, Zagreb 1R



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

32. LIABILITIES UNDER ISSUED BILLS OF EXCHANGE

Issumd bomds

M2 322011 R RTFi R
Az restated Asg restated

(i HRE000 (i HR K000 (in HRHOOO)
2263687 2,258,126 2,215,552
2,263,687 2,259,126 2,115,552

In July 2007, the Parent issued bonds in the amount of EUR 300,000,000, wih the effective coupaon rate of 5.5
percent annually. which mature on @ one-off basis in July 2017, The carrying amounts of the bonds approximate

their fair values.

In connection with the bonds issue, an interest rate swap was entered inlo on 10 July 2007 in the amount of EUR
300 million, which resulted in & decrease of the average interast rate to fived 2.5 percent in 2008 for the entire

principal, fixed 2 percent in 2009 for the entire principal and 2 percent in 2010 for the entire principal

3. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Amounts owad to related parfies
Trade payables
Oither non-current liabilities

31212012 311212011 01/01/2011
As restated As restated

iin HRK'D00) (in HRK'00D) {in HREK'G00)
224,127 196,795 190,795
11,993 2,047 2 694
21,008 28,717 22,130
257,128 227,558 224,619

92

Zagrehatki Holding d.0.0 and its subsidianes, Zagreb




Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 Decembar 2012

33. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Liabiities to related parties reported in the statement of financial position at 31 December 2012 in the amount of
HRE 224, 127 thousand (2011: HRK 106,785 thowsand) relate entiraly to the obligation towards the owner, the City
of Zagreb, as the owner of purchased real estate, for purchased properties,

Trade payables reported in the statement of financial position at 31 December 2012 in the amount of HEK 171 883
thowsand (2011 HREK 2,047 thousand) relate entirely to advances received

Other non-current liabilities reported in the statement of financial position at 31 Decembar 2012 in the amount of
HRE 21,008 thousand (2011 HRE 28 717 thousand) relate entirety to an amount owed to the State for flals sold to
employees in accordance with the underlying government programme. According to the then applicable
regulations, 85 of the income from the sale of fats to employess was to be transferred 1o the silale vpon collecton
Bazed on the Law, the Group has no obligation to remit the funds before they have been caollected from tha

employees

34, DEFERRED INCOME

MA22m2 22011 01/01/2011

#As restated As restated

{in HRE'QDO) {in HIRE T {im HE KT

Dafarred incoma 5,293 442 5 48T 487 5794 042
5,293,442 5,487 48T 5,794,042

Deferred income relales 1o assels received or linanced by local self-government units, the owner and other legal
entities, free of charge, which are repored in the staterment of financial position under deferred income. The
decrease in deferred incoma s recognised in the statememt of comprehensive income propartionally over the
useful life of respective &ssets to the extenl of depreciation of the assets finenced owt of the budget, in
accordance with 1AS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Govermnment Assisiance, whereas for repayments
of long-term loans used to finance the assels of the Company, the income i recognised to the extent of the
amount repaid by the City of Zagrab which assumed the obligation lo repay those lbans.

Jagrebackl Hodding d 0.0 and 18 subsidianes. fagreb 83



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

FRENI Joor ded 31 Deouim 201

35. LIABILITIES TO RELATED COMPANIES

322012 IMHZ2011 01012011
As restated As restated
{im HRK'000) [in HRE00) (in HREEDOO)
Bommowings from related parties 2.500 4,000 5,500
Due to the City of Zagreb 138,641 56,300 54,257
141,341 Eﬂ.ﬂﬂ'_ 59,757

36. ADVAMNCES, DEPOSITS AND GUARANTEES RECEIVED
322012 Jnzzon a2011
As restated As restated
{in HRE:00) {in HRK'000) (in HRE'O00)
Advances recenved from unrelated companies 28,084 22 085 19,755
Advances receved from the City of Zagreb 578 4,038 4 297
28,663 26 134 24,3532

37. TRADE PAYABLES

Mz I 01012011
Ag restated As resiated
{en HEK D00} (in HRK'DO0) {in HRKE'000)
Domestic trade payables 1,045 063 1,080,361 1079474
Fareign irade payalies 14,235 839 1,197
Inwoice accruals 1,006 G 1,652
1,060,304 1,082,159 1,082,323
Zagrebadki Holding d.0.0. and is subsidiaries, Zagreb o4



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

Far the year ended 31 December 2012

38. AMOUNTS DUE TO EMPLOYEES

Jnzzmz A2 0170172011
As restated As restated
(i HRK'000} (in HREDOD) {in HRK 000}
Met salaries payable 63,858 B85 475 By 290
Fees and benefits payabis 8,232 1,802 6,565
s 97,077 83856
39. TAXES AND CONTRIBUTIONS PAYABLE
Il 322011 0101/2011
As restatad As restated
{in HRKDOO) (im HRK'000) (in HRE'T00)
Payroll and benefit-related taxes and contributions 57773 13,758 60,975
Value added tax 34,013 33217 34,801
Income tax payable 1,507 arav 1,182
Membarship and similar feas payable 33,118 26.073 5 486
Cither taxes payable 478 261 2815
126,889 137,037 106,459
40, OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
22012 JTH 22011 R HLiG TP R
As restated As restated
fin {En {in
HREK'T0) HRE DO} HRE O]
Liabilities under recharged servicesa (VIO) 260,192 371,723 253,7E8
Accrued expanses nol yet billad 131,365 88,351 232777
Hher fees payable under decisions 48 418 73,780 33171
Deferred sales 45,082 51,325 44 050
Cusrrent partion of kong-term provisions for employes benefits &7 B30 15 171 40 588
(Mote 30)
Accrued VAT on prepayments 4 T 27
552,691 B20,967 604,381
Zagrabadki Halding d o.o. and ils subsidianes, Jagreh 85




Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
Far the year ended 31 December 2012

41. OFF-BALANMCE SHEET ITEMS

JiMra012 J1M2ra11 010172011

As restaled As restated

(in HREDO0) {in HRED00) (in HRE'DO0)

Off balance sheat items 880,378 1,007 818 1.235 872
880,379 1,007,819 1,236,872

Al 31 December 2012 off-balance sheal items comprise given guarantees and debentures in the amount of HRK
102 millicn { HRE 799 million}.received guarantees and debentures in the amcunt of HREK 88 8 million (2011; HRE
77.8 million), assets received under operating leases in the amount of HRK 679.5 milion (2011 HRK 8335
mallion) and other goods recelved or given under cOMMISEON OF ConSigRment

4Z. BALANCES AND TRAMSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Parlies are considered to be related if they, directly or indirectly, through one or several infermedianes, control, or
are confrodled by, have a significant nflusnce in, or are under joint contral with the reporting entity (which includes
the parent, subsidiaries and branches). The City of Zagreb, being the sale owner of the Pareni company, is the
anly having significant conlral ower the companies’ operations.

Trading transactions

Summarised below are transactions between the Group entities and those related parties that are not members of
the Group:

Sales Purchases of goods and services

2012 2011 2012 2011

A restabed A5 restabed

HREK HiRE HRK HFE

City of Zagreb 1,436 357 B45,072 27 262 26,687
1,436,337 . B45072 27,262 26,687

Zagrebacki Holdng d 0.0, and its subsidianes. Zagreb 26



MNotes to the consclidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

42. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (COMNTINUED)
Dutdstanding balances from irading ransactions at the end of the reporting period:

Amounts owed by relaled parties Amu_nt-j owed o related parties

MN22012  MAZE01T 010U2011 3AM22012 322011 01012011
&5 rastated As restated As restated L& reslated
fin fin fin fin n fin
HRKD0D] HRK'000) HRICOD] HRIC00D] HRK'000) HRK'000)
City of
Zagreb 413615 L0585 374 506 703 138,841 56,300 L 257
413,615 505374 596793 138,841 56,300 54,257

Sales from related-party transactons were made at standard market prices that are comparable with the prices
charged to unrelated parties,

The outstanding balances are nol secured by any secuwnly instrument (debentures, bills of exchange. bank
guaraniees) and will be seitled in cash,

Other related-party transactions

Amounts receivable under other related party Amounts payable under other related party

S transactions - transactions
5 T el Ji2z2oi1 01a1i2011 MNHZH012 MH22011 o1/1/2011
As restated As restated . '“'_"5 . ‘“'f
] {in {in {in {in {in
HRE'00i) HRE'D00) HRE O} HREK'DDO) HRE00) HRE D00)
City of
Zagreb 1,073,238 1,203 489 1,302,147 224 127 186,785 198,785
1,073,238 1,203 484 1,302,147 224 137 186,785 189,785

Oither related pany transactions include longlerm recevables from the owner for guaranieas provided for lang-
tarm loans fo ZET Branch for laans raised for the reconsiruction of pubdic transpord in the amouwnt of HREK 505 888
thousamd (2011, HREK 609,735 thousand), In 2009, a8 jong-term receivable from fhe owner was recognisedin
respect of funding 50 percent of the lease costs for the sports facility Arena Zagreb in the amount of HREK 655,337
thowsand (2017 HRK 684 265 thousand) based on an agreement between the City of Zagreb and the Repubdic of
Croatia, The remaineng balance receivable from other relaled party ransactions retates to amounts due under the
agreement on the road constructian financing

Zagrabadki Holding d 0.0 and Itg subsidianes, Zagreb ar



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

42, BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

in addition to the City of Zagreb, the Group's related parties include the members of its Management and
Supanvisory Boards. The total remuneration paid to the directors (of Zagrebalki hodding and its Branchas) and
members of the supenisory bodies paid in 2012 was ag follows:

T2 22011

HAs restated

fin HRE D00} {in HRE'T00)

Salaries of the key management parsonnel and Branch directors 8,280 9,489
Fees to the Supervisory Board members &0z 1,377
10,082 10,866

43. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As of 31 December 2012, provisions for employes benefits, which include long-service benefits and sobdarity
support, amouwnt to HRK 297 978 thousand (at 31 December 2011: HRK 269 878 thousand).

Long-service and termination and solidarity support

According 1o the Collective Agresment, the Group has the obligation 1o pay long-senice (jubiles awards) 1o its
employees. The Group cperales a defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. Under the plan, the employees
are enfitled to lomg-service benefits (jubilee awards) according o the average per-employee salary pasd for the
econgmic activities in the City of Zagreb according to the: following tenure with the Group:

HRK 700 for & years of continuous service

¢ 1 average monihly salary for 10 years of continuouws service

= 1.5 aeerage monthly salary for 15 years of continuous service

» 2 average monthly salaries for 20 years of conlinuous sendice

= 25 gverage monthly salames for 25 years of confinuous senice
« 3 average monthly salaries for 30 years of confinuous service

« 3.5 average monthly salanes for 35 years of continuous service

= 4 gverage monthly salaries for 40 years of continuous service

As per Collective Agreameant, the empboyees ratiring at ragular age are enlifled 1o a one-off retiremant allowanca
arnounting to 3 average monthly salanes paid from the economic activilies in the City of Zagreb over the past fhree
mEanths.

Zagrebacki Holding d 0.0, and its subsidiaries, Zagrab a8



Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

43. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Solidarity support is based on the average salary pald 1o businesses in the territory of the City of Zagreb and is
paid in the following cases.

#  death of the employves or a member of hisher close family;

« severe disability of the employee, hissher children or spouse;

& sick leave of the emploves beyvond 90 days

= support to the children of employees who fell vickms during the Homealand War

+ purchages of medical aids, coverage of the paricipation componeni in purchasing necessary
pharmaceuticals required in the opirson of the competent doctor

= restorafion of damage resulting from an Act of God;
« [arth of a cild
= seyvera cccupational injury.

The present value of defined benefil obligations and the related current and past service costs have been
determined using the Projected Credit Unit method and the discount rate of & percent (2011: 7.2%), which reflects
the market yield on government bonds.

Zagrebactki Holding d 0.0, and its subsidianes. Zagreb a8



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

431. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Key assumpbions underlying the actuarial estimates:

2012 2011
Discount rate 5% 7. 2%
Fluctuation rate 4.5% 3.5%
Average expected remaining senice period (in years) 20 20

The amaunt included in the statement of financal position arising from the Group's obligabon i respect of ils
defined long-senice and retirement benefits 1s as follows:

2012 2011

(n HRK'O0O)  (in HRK'00D)

Present value of the long-service benefil obligation 207 051 173191
Present valua of tha termanation baneht abligation 52 90 8,111
Prasent value of the support obligation 38,238 38 578
Obligation included in the statement of financial position 297,879 260,878

Of which by maturity:

012 2011
i HRK'000) {in HRK000)

Current liabilities 50,567 21,618
Man-current liabilities 247 412 248 259
2897979 269,878

Zagrebatki Holging d 0 0. and its subsidianies, Zagret 100



Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

Far M van: wnose -+ SRciiie 201

44, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

44 1. Capftal risk management

Gearing ratio

The capital structure is reviewsd a least semi-annually by analysing the cost of capital and the related risks.

CGearing ratio &t the end of the raporting peniod.

Dt

Loans, bomowings and financial leases (long-term and

current portion)
Liahilities under isued long-term sacunties

- Liability under financial lease of the Arena Zagreb (a5 it
reported as receivable from the City of 2agreb and the
Croatian Govermment)

- Loan debd of ZET, for which an amount recelvable from the
City of Zagreb has been included {on the basis of the City
guarantees provided for the lean debt)

Less: cash in hand and with banks

Net debt

Equity

Net debil-io-equity rato

Zagrebati Holding d 0.0, and its subsidiaries. Zagreb

2012 2011
Asrestated
{in HIRK'000) {in HRK'DOO)
5,332,787 5,296,331
4,354,176 4,441,821
2263687 2,259 126
(779,388) (794.981)
(505 688) (&09,T35)
(90,730 {143,503
5,242 057 5,152,428
7,116,090 7,461,031
73.7% 69.1%
. 107



MNotes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

44,  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

44.2. Categories of financial Instruments

Financial assets

Financigl assets al fair valus

Loans and Deposits (including cash ad cash equivalents)
Financial assels avadable for sals

Financial liabilities

Financial kabiblies at amomized cost

Zagrebatki Hobding d 0.0, and its subsidiaries. Zagreb

IMM22012 IMM22011

&8 restated

(ir HRIKC'O00) fin HRE'000)

7438 7411

4 578,318 4,818 768

6919 &,8688

8 662 480 8,751,353
102



Motes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 Decamibar 2ﬂ12

44,  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

44.3. Financial risk management objectives

For the purpose of forecasting potential scenarios that may have a negative impact on the operations and
achievement of the Group's objectives, the Group identifies financial risks, assesses their potential impact on the
Group's future operations and manages those nsks,

The varous financial risks to which the Group is exposed in the course of ils operations are sought to be
minimised, avoided and rolled over in order to safeguard its operations. If economically feasible, certain financial
nsks are accepted.

The key risks comprise liquidity risk, foreign exchange nsk and intarest rate nsk.

They are described below, along with the methods applied to manage those risks. The Group dd not use any
derivafive instruments to manage the risks. The Group does nol use denvatives for speculative purposes.

44.4. Market risk

The communal semvice prices are proposed by the Managemen! Board based on the markel prices, and
determined and approved by the City of Zagreb,

The actvities of the Group expose it 1o the financial risks of changes in foreign exchange and inerest rales (see
below) The market risk exposure is supplemented by sensitivity analyses There has been no change 1o the
Group's exposure 1o market risks or the manner in which these nsks are managed and measured.

44.6. Foreign currency risk management
The Group undertakes cerain transactions denominated in foreign curencies. Hence, exposures to exchange rate

fluctuations arise. The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign-currency denominaled monetary assets and
monetary kabilties at the repoding date are provided in the table below

Liabilities Assels
' INA22011, as o ; 311272011, as
3112/2012 isdedyetey 3111212012 festaind
{in HRK'000) fin HRK'000}
EUR 5,250,930 5 440 400 1,897 B4D 2 053 011
UsDh : ’ 157 160
Other currencias - - as 55
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [CONTINUED)

44.5. Foreign currency risk management (continued)
Fareign currency sensiivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctustions in the exchange rate of Croatian kuna fo euro (EUR), since most
of its dabt i 7% s Ued to thal currency. The following table details the Group's sensitivity 1o a 1% increase in
Croatian kuna against the relevant foreign currencies. 1% is the sensilivity rate used when reporting loreign
currency risk internally and represents the Group's assesament of the reasonabdy possible change of the Croatian
kuna aganist eure, The sensitivily analysis includes monetary assels and monetary labilities in foreign cumencies.
A negative number Below indscates a decrease in profil where ihe Croatian kuna changes against the relevant
currency for the percentage specified abowe. For a weakening of the Croatian kuna against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit,

EUR impact Impact of olher cumrencies
31/12/2011, as & 31122011,
311212042 i Mhamz L
fin HRK'000) {in HRKDO0)
g (33,531 (33,875) | 1

44,6,  Interest rate risk management

Given that 53 percent of the Company's laan delbt bears interest at wariable rates, the Growp is exposed (o interest
rate risk. Set oul below are the interest rales at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 by type of lability:

2012 As reststad

EURIBOR 27.66% 22.90%
LIBOR 6.680% 11.05%
ZIBOR 0.23% 0.32%
Yiekd on Treasury bilks of the Ministry of Finance 16.18% 22.38%
Fixed rate of inlerest 47 13% 43 38%
© 100.00%  100.00%

Chut of the tatal loan debt of the Group, 47 percent are agreed at fixed rates. The majoridy of the loan debt bearing
fixed rates of interest comprises issued bonds with a fixed coupon rate of 550 % p.a., and the rest relates to the
finance lease obligation for Arana Jagreb
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

d4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
44.6 Interest rate risk management [continued)

EURIBOR and EUR LIBOR tied loan debl accounts for 34.45 of the total loan debl, whereas 18.18 of the loan debt
is lied o the yiald on the Treasury Bills of the Croatian Menistry of Finance. Thus, 53 percent of the loan debt bears
inerest at variable rates, which has been acknowledged as a significant uncenasnly in developing future cash flow
progections,

44 6. 1. Interesf rate sensifivily analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposune bo interest rates on underivative
instruments at the and of the reporting pericd. For fioating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of liabdity outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase
or decrease is used when repoeding interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in inferest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constan
« the loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 would have been mighrlower by HRK 17,251
thousand (2011 higherfowwer by HRK 17 283 thousand), mainly atinbutable to the exposure of the
Group to vanable-rate borrowings.

For the purpose of managing credd nsk, the Group is aclively monitoning the interest rate movements. Given the
wolatiity of the EURIBOR and the yield on the Treaswry Bills of the Croatian Ministry of Finance, the Group finds
the witerest rate risk acceplable and, consequanidly, has entered info no derivative instruments as a hedge against
the interest rale risk. The Group identifies the mismatch bebween the interest-bearing transactions in which the
Group is the payee and the payer and seeks to achieve balance with the inlerest receivable while agreeing the
interest rales payable.

44,7 Credit risk management

Credit risk refers 1o the rigk that a counterpary will default on its contraciual obligations resulting in financial loss to
thes Groug. The Group ablains collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the sk of financial koss from
defaulls,

Cuslomers are classified into risk groupings based on the fnancial indcalors and own frading records, and
appropnatle cradit sk mitigation measures are taken for each risk dass Customers are classified mainty on the
basis of their official financial statements and the Group's history of trading with each customer The Group
ransacts with a large number of customers from various industnes and of various size, as well as with cilizens
(irdividuals). Trade recenables are presented net of allowance for bad and doubtful accounts,

44.8 Liguidity risk management

Because of the liguedity probieéms grevailing in the Croatian aconamy, tha liquidity risk has a highly negative impact
on the Group's operations. Instruments used 1o monitor and mitigate lguidity risk are as follows: analysing and
managing cash Bows analysing assets and the sources ol Bnancing those assels, analysing customer
creditwontienass, collateral. cradit and revahang facsiies, and similas
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

44.9 Falr value of financial iInstruments

44.9.1 Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsaquent too initial
recognition at fasr value, grouped info Levels 1 1o 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is cbservable.

« Lewel 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoded prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or lkabilities,

+  Level 2 indicators - indicators of falr value derived from data other than guoted prices from Lewel 1 for
obsarvable assats or liabilites (i a. their prces) o indirectly (denved from the price); and

+ Level 3 indicators Level 3 fair value measwrements are those desved from valuation techmigiees that
include inputs for the assel or lability that are not based on cbservable marke! dala (unobservable

inputs),
Iz
{in HREK'000) Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Participaling intengsts - investiments n =
sharas 7439 7430
7438 7,439
3220
{in HRK'DO0) Leval 1 Lieved 2 Level 3 Total
Financlal assets at fair valve through
profif or loss
Participating intenesls - investmants in . .
shares 7411 2= T4l
7,411 741
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

45, COMMITMENTS

The Group has entered info contracts thal are still in progress. Costs to be incurred under thoss conlracts hava
been estimated at HRE 147,145 thousand, whereas the estimated value of invesiments amounts to HRE 154 483
thousand,

48, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Enviromnmenlal malfers

Included in the Group is Branch ZG0S, whose principal busingss is communal and other waste disposal and the
rehabifation of the JakuSevac landfill, as well as to assist the City in establishing a long-lerm communal wasie
management development strategy for the City of Zagreb. The emdronmental effects are monitored by local and
governmental environmental authoities. In respect of fulure costs of mainienance and supervision of the landfill
the Growp (e 2G0S) recorded a prowsion of HRE 35,022 thousand, i accordance with BAS 37 FProwvizions,
Conlingend Liabilities and Contingen! Azseds (2011: HRK 24 2594 thaugsand)

Taxation

The Group is subject io corporale income tax on their [axable profs in Croatia and those other tax junsdiclions in
wihich they operate. The supervisory mepecton of the value-added tax and corparate income tax for the year 2010
by the Tax Administration is currently in progress

Restucuring

Im 2010 the Management Board adopted a programme of measures and activilies aimed al restructuring and
streamlining the operations, which will continue in the following periods,

Concesson fghts
Viodoopskrba | odwodrga, a branch within the Company, pays a concession fea for the waler supply, which

amounts o HRK 0.08 per 5q. m. The iofal concession fee for 2012 amounts to HRK 4,795 thousand (2011: HRK
4 907 thousand)

47. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Ag from 1 January 2013, the concession fee for the walter supply sensces amounis o HRE 0135 per sold 5q. m
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012

48, PENSION INSURANCE

The Group does nol operate a separate retirement plan for its employees or management, either in Croatia or
abroad. Thus, no provisions for those obligations have been made.

The Group pays pension coniributions on behalf of its employees in the Republic of Croatia in accordance with
applicable legal reguiations. These contributions form the basis for the pensions payvable out of the Croalian
Mational Pension Fund to Croatian employees upon their retiremeant. Currently, there ane no cutstanding retiremant
benefit chligations. eiher for the Group's present or former employees

43, LEGAL AND REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT

The operations of the Group and ils revenue are regulated by several laws, the most significant ones being as
fallows

=  The Law on Communal Management

#=  The Law on Local Seff-government

=  The Law on Waste

= The Institutions Act

#  The Law on Walers

= The Cemeteries Act

= The Buslding Maintenance Act

& The Act on Free Zongs

50. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Thesa financial statements were adopied by the Managemeant and authonzed for iBsue 28 June 2073,

e Covie, Graduate Engineer
President of the Management Board  ZAGREBACKI HOLDING
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